
 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Fax: 01865 783195  Media Enquiries 01865 323870 
 

 
 
To: Members of the Planning & Regulation Committee 

 

Notice of a Meeting of the Planning & Regulation 
Committee 

 

Monday, 9 December 2019 at 2.00 pm 
 

County Hall, New Road, Oxford 
 
 

 

Membership 
 

Chairman – Councillor Jeannette Matelot 
Deputy Chairman - Councillor Stefan Gawrysiak 

 
Councillors 
 

Mrs Anda Fitzgerald-
O'Connor 

Mike Fox-Davies 
Pete Handley 

Damian Haywood 
 

Bob Johnston 
G.A. Reynolds 
Judy Roberts 
Dan Sames 

 

John Sanders 
Alan Thompson 
Richard Webber 

 

 
Notes: 
 
• Date of next meeting: 27 January 2020 
 

 
Yvonne Rees  
Chief Executive November 2019 
  
Committee Officer: Graham Warrington 

Tel: 07393 001211; E-Mail: 
graham.warrington@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

 

Members are asked to contact the case officers in advance of the committee meeting if 
they have any issues/questions of a technical nature on any agenda item. This will 
enable officers to carry out any necessary research and provide members with an 
informed response. 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/


 

 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 
The duty to declare….. 
Under the Localism Act 2011 it is a criminal offence to 
(a) fail to register a disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 days of election or co-option (or re-

election or re-appointment), or 
(b) provide false or misleading information on registration, or 
(c) participate in discussion or voting in a meeting on a matter in which the member or co-opted 

member has a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Whose Interests must be included? 
The Act provides that the interests which must be notified are those of a member or co-opted 
member of the authority, or 

 those of a spouse or civil partner of the member or co-opted member; 

 those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as husband/wife 

 those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as if they were civil 
partners. 

(in each case where the member or co-opted member is aware that the other person has the 
interest). 

What if I remember that I have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the Meeting?. 
The Code requires that, at a meeting, where a member or co-opted member has a disclosable 
interest (of which they are aware) in any matter being considered, they disclose that interest to 
the meeting. The Council will continue to include an appropriate item on agendas for all 
meetings, to facilitate this. 

Although not explicitly required by the legislation or by the code, it is recommended that in the 
interests of transparency and for the benefit of all in attendance at the meeting (including 
members of the public) the nature as well as the existence of the interest is disclosed. 

A member or co-opted member who has disclosed a pecuniary interest at a meeting must not 
participate (or participate further) in any discussion of the matter; and must not participate in any 
vote or further vote taken; and must withdraw from the room. 

Members are asked to continue to pay regard to the following provisions in the code that “You 
must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an advantage or 
disadvantage on any person including yourself” or “You must not place yourself in situations 
where your honesty and integrity may be questioned…..”. 

Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting should you have any doubt 
about your approach. 

List of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests: 
Employment (includes“any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain”.), Sponsorship, Contracts, Land, Licences, Corporate Tenancies, Securities. 
 
For a full list of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and further Guidance on this matter please see 
the Guide to the New Code of Conduct and Register of Interests at Members’ conduct guidelines. 
http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/ or contact 
Glenn Watson on 07776 997946 or glenn.watson@oxfordshire.gov.uk for a hard copy of the 
document.  

 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 

http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/
mailto:glenn.watson@oxfordshire.gov.uk


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  
 

2. Declarations of Interest - see guidance note opposite  
 

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 12) 
 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 9 September 2019 (PN3) and to receive 
information arising from them. 

 

4. Petitions and Public Address  
 

5. Chairman's Updates  
 

6. Update to Local List of Information Requirements for Validation of 
Planning and Related Applications (Pages 13 - 86) 
 

 Report by Director for Planning & Place (PN6). 
 
The report sets out the requirement to update the Local List of Validation Requirements 
for planning applications determined by Oxfordshire County Council.   It sets out the 
proposed consultation on minor amendments to the text of the Local List and the 
intention to adopt a revised version by March 2020.    
 
It is RECOMMENDED that:  
 
(a)  the draft revised Local List of Information Requirements as set out at 

Annex 1 to this report be subject to a three-week period of public 
consultation;  
 

(b)   if after that period and following further consultation with the Chairman 
and Deputy Chairman of the Planning & Regulation Committee, it was 
considered that no significant changes were required to the draft revised 
Local List of Information Requirements then the Director for Planning and 
Place be authorised to adopt and publish that list,  
 

(c)   if, however, after that period and following further consultation with the 
Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Planning & Regulation Committee, it 
was considered that significant changes were required to the draft revised 
Local List of Information Requirements, the matter be reported back to the 
Planning and Regulation Committee for further consideration.  

 



- 2 - 
 

 

7. Progress Report on Minerals and waste Site Monitoring and 
Enforcement (Pages 87 - 118) 
 

 Report by Director for Planning & Place (PN7). 
 
The report updates members on the regular monitoring of minerals and waste planning 
permissions for the period 1 April 2019 to 30 October 2019 and on the progress of 
planning enforcement cases. 
 
It is RECOMMENDED that the Schedule of Compliance Monitoring Visits in Annex 
1 and the Schedule of Enforcement Cases in Annex 2 to the report be noted. 
 

  

Pre-Meeting Briefing 

There will be a pre-meeting briefing at County Hall on Monday 9 December 2019                
at 12 midday for the Chairman, Deputy Chairman and Opposition Group Spokesman. 
 



 

PLANNING & REGULATION COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held on Monday, 9 September 2019 commencing at 2.00 
pm and finishing at 4.10 pm 
 
Present: 
 

 

Voting Members: Councillor Jeannette Matelot – in the Chair 
 

 Councillor Mrs Anda Fitzgerald-O'Connor 
Councillor Mike Fox-Davies 
Councillor Bob Johnston 
Councillor G.A. Reynolds 
Councillor Judy Roberts 
Councillor Dan Sames 
Councillor John Sanders 
Councillor Alan Thompson 
Councillor Richard Webber 
 

Other Members in 
Attendance: 
 

Councillor Lynda Atkins (for Agenda Item 7) 
Councillor Judith Heathcoat (for Agenda Item 8) 
Councillor Charles Mathew (for Agenda Item 9) 

  
Officers: 
 

 

Whole of meeting G. Warrington & D. Mytton (Law & Governance); D. 
Periam and Mrs M Hudson (Planning & Place) 
 

Part of meeting 
 

 

Agenda Item Officer Attending 
7. K. Griffin ( 

 
The Committee considered the matters, reports and recommendations contained or 
referred to in the agenda for the meeting, together with a schedule of addenda 
tabled at the meeting and decided as set out below.  Except as insofar as otherwise 
specified, the reasons for the decisions are contained in the agenda, reports and 
schedule, copies of which are attached to the signed Minutes. 
 

34/19 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND TEMPORARY APPOINTMENTS  
(Agenda No. 1) 

 
 

 
Apology for Absence 

 
Temporary Appointment 

 

 
Councillor Stefan Gawrysiak 
Councillor Peter Handley 
Councillor Damian Haywood 

 
(no temporary appointment) 
(no temporary appointment) 
(no temporary appointment) 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



PN3 

  

 
 
  
 

35/19 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - SEE GUIDANCE NOTE OPPOSITE  
(Agenda No. 2) 

 
No declarations made. 
 

36/19 MINUTES  
(Agenda No. 3) 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 July 2019 were approved and signed. 
 
Minute 31/19 - Extraction Of Sand, Gravel And Clay Including The Creation Of 
New Access, Processing Plant, Offices With Welfare Accommodation, 
Weighbridge And Silt Water Lagoon System With Site Restoration To 
Agriculture And Nature Conversation Including Lakes With Recreational 
Afteruses And The Permanent Diversion Of Footpath 171/15 And Creation Of 
New Footpaths At Land At Fullamoor Plantation, Clifton Hampden, Abingdon, 
OX14 3DD - Application MW.0074/18  
 
Mr Periam advised that as no further material comments had been received a refusal 
notice for Application MW.0074/18 had therefore been issued. 
 

37/19 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS  
(Agenda No. 4) 

 
 
 

 
Speakers 

 

 
Item 

 
Roger Thomas (Friends of Radley 
Lakes) 
Richard Dudding (Radley Parish 
Council) 
Douglas Symes (Agent) 
 

 
) 
) 
) 6. Radley ROMP 
) 
) 

 
Kevin Griffin – OCC 
Matthew Richards (Ridge & 
partners) 
Lynne Harrison (Wallingford School) 
County Councillor Lynda Atkins 
 

 
) 
) 
) 7. Wallingford School – Application 
) R3.0143/18 
) 
 

 
Glen Yarwood (Little Coxwell Parish 

 
) 8. Faringdon Quarry – Application 

Page 2



PN3 

Council) 
County Councillor Judith Heathcoat 
 

)MW.0068/19 
) 

 
Suzi Coyne (Agent) 
County Councillor Charles Mathew 
 

 
) 9 – Dix Pit – Application 
)R3.0059/19 

 

38/19 CHAIRMAN'S UPDATES  
(Agenda No. 5) 

 
There were no updates. 
 

39/19 SERVING OF THE PROHIBITION ORDER FOR THE REVIEW OF THE 
MINERAL PLANNING PERMISSION (ROMP) AT THRUPP FARM AND 
THRUPP FARM, RADLEY  
(Agenda No. 6) 

 
The Committee considered (PN6) a report setting out the issue of whether minerals 
development at Thrupp Farm and Thrupp Farm, Radley had permanently ceased and 
whether or not a Prohibition Order for the Review of the Mineral Planning Permission 
(ROMP) should be served.  
 
Roger Thomas spoke on behalf of the Friends of Radley Lakes community 
organisation who supported the making of the Prohibition Order. They had no 
objection in principle to further gravel extraction here, but the prolonged inactivity had 
created uncertainty and impeded planning for the wider area. Posing the question 
whether or not it appeared on the evidence available, that mineral working was likely 
to resume at this site he felt that on the basis of evidence over the past half-century 
that would not seem to be the case. The main unextracted area was Area 5 
permission for which had been granted in 1971. There had been no extraction in this 
area since then. The general consensus locally as to why extraction of this area had 
not even begun, nearly 50 years on was that as Area 5 lay in the floodplain extraction 
would quite simply be uneconomic. In summary, all the evidence suggested that a 
resumption of mineral working here was unlikely and would appear to have 
permanently ceased at this site. 
 
Richard Dudding spoke on behalf of Radley Parish Council who supported the 
proposed prohibition order. Permissions to extract minerals there dated back to 1954 
with most of the former workings restored and no extraction having taken place since 
about 1995. As minerals workings ceased the area had wonderful potential for nature 
conservation and quiet recreation. Minerals, however, remain in the ground in a field 
called Nyatt [Area 5] with the operator maintaining they would eventually be 
extracted. However, to judge the credibility of that claim it would be necessary to look 
also at another site nearby in Area 1 consisting of a yard that had previously serviced 
minerals operations. Since 1982, if not before, the operator let that yard for industrial 
and commercial activities unrelated to minerals while arguing that it would eventually 
be needed to service the Nyatt operations and, therefore, should not be restored to 
greenfield.  This had enabled them to obtain temporary planning permissions for uses 
which would otherwise have had no chance of being allowed – given the green belt 

Page 3



PN3 

location and the unsatisfactory road access. In 1992 following a public inquiry an 
Inspector agreed to allow the uses for a further period, but this was based on his firm 
belief that the Nyatt minerals would be fully extracted by 2008 at very latest and 
possibly sooner. However, 27 years after that decision there was no sign of extraction 
even starting. In 2012 Tuckwells obtained planning permission for the Nyatt minerals 
to be conveyed to their yard for treatment but that permission lapsed in 2017.  In our 
view statements by the operators did not reflect their actual intent but were a device 
to justify prolonging their unrelated commercial activity at their yard blighting the 
future of the Lakes area and in the Parish council’s view the County Council would be 
fully justified in serving a prohibition order.   
 
Responding to Councillor Johnston Mr Dudding confirmed that uncertainty had 
affected the development of Radley Lakes and also the neighbourhood plan. 
 
Douglas Symes then spoke on behalf of the two owners and operators of Thrupp 
Farm and Sutton Wick Quarry making it clear that the intention had always been to 
resume working at Radley when permitted reserves had run out at Sutton Wick. 
There was evidence to support that and county council officers were aware of that as 
stated in paragraph 14 of the report before the Committee.  It was also the intention 
that an application for a review of conditions would be made when the Sutton Wick 
site was due to finish and closer to the time that working at Thrupp Farm would be 
resumed. Surveys had been carried out to support that but to have two coterminous 
sites working was unsustainable and would create greater disruption to local amenity. 
A planning application to use the Thrupp Lane plant site to process material from 
Thrupp Farm prepared over the last 8 months was almost ready to be submitted and 
so to interpret the absence of any application so far as evidence that it is not intended 
to resume working was contrary to what had been said in writing to the county council 
and other interested parties. That would be presented in support of any appeal 
against any prohibition notice.  He argued that the long history of evidence on this 
site made it clear that working would resume while explaining the need to manage 
effectively finite resources.  Challenging the conclusion reached by county officers he 
concluded that any decision to serve a prohibition notice would be strongly 
challenged on the basis of sound evidence. 
 
He then responded to questions from: 
 
Councillor Johnston – working had ceased to allow Sutton Wick to work first and 
although the 2 sites had different accesses it had been considered unsustainable to 
work both sites at the same time.  He did not accept the point made by Councillor 
Johnston that an EIA put forward some years ago had been deficient. That was 
incorrect. 
 
Councillor Fox-Davies – the Thrupp Farm and Sutton Wick applications were 
separate. Thrupp Farm had a completion date of 2042 and with reserves of 1 million 
tonnes that did not imply the site was worked out. 
 
Councillor Fitzgerald-O’Connor – Sutton Wick was expected to be worked out by 
2027. 
 

Page 4



PN3 

Mr Periam confirmed that there was information to support the figure of a million 
tonnes in reserve but that was not included within the landbank figure. The site was 
not within areas of search in the emerging Minerals and Waste Plan and the EIA 
referred to earlier by Councillor Johnston had not constituted a good assessment 
adding that that had in fact been immaterial in the end.  
 
Councillor Roberts expressed some concern that an expiry date of 2042 for the 
Thrupp Farm permission could affect the Council’s position if challenged. 
 
Mr Periam felt sure the landowners would challenge any decision to serve a 
prohibition notice but he considered that the County Council were not acting 
unreasonably in reaching such a conclusion. 
 
RESOLVED: (on a motion by Councillor Johnston, seconded by Councillor Reynolds 
and carried by 9 votes to 1) that it be determined that mineral working on the site had 
permanently ceased and that accordingly there was a duty on the Mineral Planning 
Authority to serve a Prohibition Order of the mineral permissions covering areas DD1 
(Plan 1) and DD2 (Plan 2). 
 

40/19 PROVISION OF A NEW 64 SPACE CARPARK, COMPRISED OF A 43 
SPACE FORMALLY LAID OUT PAVED PARKING AREA WITH AN 
OVERFLOW GRASS-PROTECTED AREA PROVIDING THE ADDITIONAL 
21 SPACES. WORKS INCLUDE THE ADAPTION OF THE EXISTING SITE 
OPENING AND INSTALLATION OF AN ACCESS BARRIER AT FIELD 
AREA DIRECTLY TO THE WEST OF ST GEORGES ROAD AND NORTH OF 
MILLINGTON ROAD, WALLINGFORD, OXON, OX10 8HL - APPLICATION  
R3.0143/18  
(Agenda No. 7) 

 
The Committee considered (CMDE7) an application for provision of a new 64-space 
staff only car park in connection with the planned expansion of Wallingford School, St 
Georges Road, Wallingford required as the development for the extension of 
Wallingford School would remove some of the existing parking currently provided. 
The application was being reported to Committee because of objections received 
during a first consultation phase from Sport England, South Oxfordshire District 
Council and third-party objections based on loss of playing field provision, noise and 
visual impacts of additional traffic, increased air pollution and the requirement for a 
car park. A second consultation reducing the number of spaces from 100 to 64 was 
due to end on 6 September although the objections over loss of playing field space 
and impact on air quality had not been removed.  

 
Kevin Griffin confirmed that the application had been required to support the 
expansion of Wallingford School necessary as a result of housing growth.  The 
application, which represented a net growth of 36 spaces, was being proposed on an 
area of land not regarded as suitable for recreation use by the school. 
 
Lynne Harrison confirmed that the proposed area in St Georges Road had not been 
used for many years due mainly to logistics including lack of changing facilities, 

Page 5



PN3 

although there had been some limited use by a local youth football club.  However, 
that had stopped with the club moving to use the astro pitch facilities at the school. 
 
Matthew Richards confirmed that as space on the current Wallingford school site was 
very restricted resiting the car park off-site would help to avoid any adverse impact on 
current on-site facilities as a result of the necessary planned expansion of the school. 
 
Responding to Councillor Sames Mr Griffin accepted that while the birth rate was 
declining increased housing would result in increased numbers and regarding child 
obesity by resiting the car park off-site they were avoiding any impact or reduction off 
on site facilities. 
 
Councillor Lynda Atkins supported the application which was about meeting the  
needs of Wallingford and the surrounding area.  The County Council had a duty to 
provide educational needs and if that was not done there would be a requirement to 
transport children to other schools. The field proposed for the new car park did not 
work logistically for the school and with no other reasonable option available as the 
school was surrounded by housing this presented a sensible option to meet the 
pressing needs of Wallingford School. 
 
Councillor Sames considered the proposal contradictory to paragraph 97 of the NPPF 
which prevented playing fields being developed on unless 3 tests had been met. That 
as far as he could see had not been addressed neither had the site been declared 
site surplus to requirements. That could leave the Council open to challenge. 
 
Mr Mytton replied that the NPPF contained a number or relevant references to this 
application which the report mentioned.  
 
Councillor Reynolds acknowledged the level of objection to the proposal but 
considered that the points made by the local member along with the clear need for 
the school to expand were enough to override those concerns. 
 
Mr Periam confirmed that if the Committee were minded to approve the application 
then because Sport England had objected it would need to be referred to the 
Secretary of State for him to decide if an inquiry was required.  
  
RESOLVED: (on a motion by Councillor Sanders, seconded by Councillor Thompson 
and carried by 7 votes to 1, Councillor Sames recorded as voting against and 
Councillor Roberts and Councillor Reynolds as abstaining) that the Director for 
Planning and Place be authorised to either: 

 
A i) should planning permission to application no. P19/S0191/FUL be approved by 

South Oxfordshire District Council and this application first being referred to 
the Secretary of State to provide the opportunity for the application to be 
called in for his own determination, as required under the Town and Country 
Planning (Consultation) (England) Direction 2009 and the Secretary of State 
not calling in the application for his own determination following referral to 
him,  approve application no. R3.0143/18 subject to conditions to be 
determined by the Director of Planning and Place including: 

 

Page 6



PN3 

1. The development should be carried out in strictly in accordance with the 
particulars of the development, plans and specifications contained in the 
application, except as modified by conditions of this permission. The 
approved plans and particulars to comprise:  
 

- Application form dated 22/11/2018  

- Transport Statement 17/10/2018 

- Proposed Car Park Road Construction Details 

- Proposed Car Park Surface Finishes and Kerbs 

- Additional Information August 2019 – Existing Site Plan – Car Park – 
Drawing No 0007 Rev C  

- Additional Information August 2019 – Location Plan – Car Park – 
Drawing No. 0005 Rev D 

- Additional Information August 2019 – Block Plan – Car Park – Drawing 
No. 0006 Rev D  

- Additional Information August 2019 – Proposed Site Plan – Car Park – 
Drawing No. 0008 Rev E 

- Additional Information August 2019 – Design and Access Statement 
Dated August 2019 

- Sketch plan of entrance Drawing no. 5001158 August 2019. 

 
2. Work should not commence on the construction of the car park until the 

extension to Wallingford School to be permitted by permission 
P19/S0191/FUL had been completed or until such earlier time as the 
County Planning Authority might approve. 

3. Prior to the commencement of the development, a detailed plan of the 
access including amendments to the layby should be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the County Planning Authority. 

4. No works of construction should take place until a detailed landscaping 
plan, planting scheme and habitat management plan had been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the County Planning Authority. The works 
should be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved details and 
should be retained in that manner thereafter. 

 
Informative 
The proposal should comply with section 12, para. 127 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and also Planning Practice Guidance 
on ‘Design’ and consider issues to create safe, connected and efficient 
streets, crime prevention, security measures and cohesive & vibrant 
neighbourhoods’. 
 

 ii)  should South Oxfordshire District Council be minded to approve 
P19/S/0191/FUL, that they be advised that the County Council considered 

Page 7



PN3 

a condition should be attached, that the school extension should not be 
brought into use until a car park had been provided for additional staff 
parking in the vicinity of the school and such car park is available for use. 

 
or 

 
B should planning permission to application no. P19/S0191/FUL be refused by 

South Oxfordshire District Council, to refuse planning permission for application 
no. R3.0143/18 for the following reasons: 

  
1. The proposed development would lead to significant impacts on amenity, 

including air quality and would be contrary to policies CSWAL1 of the 
SOCS and policies EP1, WAL1, and ENV12 of the ESOLP. 

 
2. The proposed development would lead to pollution emissions, noise and 

vibration, and would therefore be contrary to saved policies EP1 and EP2 
of the SOLP, and policies ENV12 and DES6 of the ESOLP. 

 
3. The proposed development makes no provision for a modal shift to public 

transport, cycling or walking. It is therefore contrary to policy CSM1 of the 
SOCS, and policy TRANS5 of the ESOLP. 

 
4. The development would lead to a loss of playing field space and so 

existing recreational provision contrary to policy CF1 of the SOLP. 
 
 

41/19 REQUEST FOR PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE INSTALLATION AND USE OF 
A CONCRETE BATCHING PLANT TO PRODUCE READY-MIXED 
CONCRETE FOR SALE AT LAND AT FARINGDON QUARRY, FERNHAM 
ROAD, FARINGDON, OXFORDSHIRE, SN7 7LG - APPLICATION  
MW.0068/19  
(Agenda No. 8) 

 
The Committee considered (PN8) a report on whether Prior Approval should be 
granted for the installation and use of a concrete batching plant to produce ready-
mixed concrete at Faringdon Quarry (planning permission no. MW.0068/19). This 
was an application for Prior Approval of Permitted Developmment under Part 17, 
Class B of the General Permitted Development (England) Order (As Amended) 2015 
and was being reported to Committee because objections had been received from 
the local County Councillor, Little Coxwell Parish Council, Faringdon Town Council 
and other third parties. 

Mr Periam presented the report together with additional information set out in the 
addenda which included a revised recommendation. 

Glen Yarwood on behalf of Little Coxwell Parish Council and residents considered the 
introduction of a concrete batching plant wholly unacceptable, completely 
disproportionate and a major departure from the initial quarrying of local materials for 
onward sale. Objections related to noise, traffic, dust and pollution, impact on the 
rural countryside, water supply and commercial considerations. Little Coxwell was a 
rural location with a large number of walkers on local footpaths and horses located in 

Page 8



PN3 

the fields opposite the site and all using local bridleways and roads. Noise from the 
machinery would have a huge effect as would the visual impact. Dust and pollution 
would be distributed over a wide area and it was dismissive to suggest this would or 
could be mitigated by modern dust collection systems. That was clearly not the case 
as evidenced at other similar sites. The investment made in this sort of equipment 
suggested an intent to gain as much revenue as possible and, therefore, activity on 
site would inevitable increase. There was likely to be a higher increase in traffic than 
had been suggested with a more realistic figure of 10 vehicles an hour if equipment 
was used at full capacity. That investment also seemed to be contradictory to the site 
closing in 2026 which suggested an extension to the working life of the quarry. The 
potential for dust and pollution from cement dust which can be extremely harmful was 
considerable and it made little sense to introduce this sort of risk in an area when no 
demonstrable need for the material had been shown to exist. A 7-metre high piece of 
equipment would be visible and it was not acceptable to suggest that it would blend in 
on an existing industrial site or increase what was already an eyesore in the rural 
community. Water supply could be affected if the plant was on the same supply as 
the local community which already suffered from low water pressure. The parish 
council were strongly requesting that the application be refused. 

Endorsing the above comments County Councillor Judith Heathcote emphasised the 
rural and agricultural location of this site and the consequences for the surrounding 
area. The site stood adjacent to the A420 where traffic levels were steadily increasing 
and with the expansion of Swindon safety levels were decreasing to such an extent 
that the road had been identified for inclusion in the Major Roads Network Proposals 
and had been the subject of numerous A420 safety meetings with officers and other 
local county councillors whose divisions straddled the road.  The A420 had many 
junctions notably Buckland, which had been improved, Buckland Marsh, Littleworth, 
Little Coxwell and Great Coxwell and it is was these that accounted for the majority of 
accidents with drivers at the Littlewroth junction preferring to turn left out of Littleworth 
rather than risk a right turn across oncoming traffic. That manouvere was being 
replicated at other junctions. Commercial traffic did not follow advisory signing to use 
the A34 to the M4 preferring instead the A420. Little Coxwell had one junction onto 
A420 where traffic was moving at and often exceeding 60 mph and to suggest that 
that junction was acceptable with sufficient splays and sightlines was at best 
questionable.  Water requirements for the batching plant via a storage tank would 
affect local water pressure.  I would urge the Committee to take on board the 
concerns I and other local residents have raised regarding conditions on the A420, 
impact on a rural and agricultural area, health and welfare from pollution, dust and 
noise and the serious need for the Little Coxwell junction to be improved. 

 

Responding to Councillor Sames she confirmed that road improvements had not 
been carried out and residents did not want to see dirt and pollution problems 
experienced at similar sites replicated here. 

 

Councillor Fitzgerald-O’Connor expressed concern regarding pollution and dust and 
agreed that any additional movements onto the A420 would be a major concern. 

 

Page 9



PN3 

Mr Periam explained that the type of conditions which could be imposed on this type 
of application were limited to those which reduced injury to the amenity of a 
neighbourhood from a particular development or whether it could be sited elsewhere. 
Regarding the latter officers had felt that the location here where suitable material for 
concrete production was worked would contribute to meeting market demand in this 
part of the county and surrounding areas.  Regarding the former and in response to 
specific questions he confirmed that it would not be possible to condition or refuse 
permission on highway capacity or safety impacts.  However, a condition to mitigate 
against noise and dust could be considered as an impact on local amenity and a limit 
on vehicle movements to 22 per day to protect local horseriders and local inhabitants 
and residents. 

 

RESOLVED: (on a motion by Councillor Johnston, seconded by ????? and carried 
by 6 votes to 3, Councillor Sames, Councillor Reynolds and Councillor Fitzgerald-
O’Connor recorded as voting against and Councillor Webber recorded as abstaining) 
that the prior approval be granted for the installation and use of a mobile Concrete 
Batching Plant to produce ready-mixed concrete for sale under Part 17, Class B of 
the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 
2015 (as amended), and in accordance with 
 
(a)  the detailed proposals for the location, height, design and appearance of the 

plant, as contained within the application and listed in the Schedule of 
Approved Plans and Documents. 
 
Schedule of Approved Plans and Documents 
 
(i) Request letter dated 09.07.19 
(ii) Location Plan – Drawing No. DG.EST.FAR.CBP.01 
(iii) Concrete Batching Plant Location Plan – Drawing No. 

DG.EST.FAR.CBP.02 
(iv) MCM60 & MCS50 Silo Layout with existing 10m screws – Drawing No. 

Wiltshire MCM60 Layout 
(v) MCM60 & MCS50 – Silo Layout with existing 10m screws (colour) – 

Drawing No. Wiltshire MCM60 Elevation Layout 
(vi) Technical Note dated 29.05.19 
(vii) Faringdon CBP Technical Note Addendum dated 21.08.19 

 

(b) on condition that the submission of a screening planting scheme be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Minerals Planning Authority and implemented 
prior to the installation of the mobile batching plant and additional conditions 
(under Part 17, Class B.2(2) of the GDPO) to protect the amenity of the 
neighbourhood to: 

(i) Limit the number of vehicle movements to 22 per day 
(ii) Ensure robust dust and noise monitoring 
(iii) Ensure use of wheelwashing facilities 

 

Page 10



PN3 

42/19 USE OF LAND FOR MANUFACTURE OF RECYCLED AGGREGATE AND 
SOILS AT D & M PLANT HIRE LTD, DIX PIT, LINCH HILL, STANTON 
HARCOURT, OX29 5BB - APPLICATION R3.0059/19  
(Agenda No. 9) 

 
The Committee considered (PN9) an application for the temporary use of 0.32ha of 
land for the manufacture of recycled aggregate and soils at the request of the local 
member. Objections had been received from Northmoor Parish Council due to the 
transport, dust and noise impacts.  
 
Mrs Hudson presented the report. 
 
Suzi Coyne for the applicant welcomed the recommendation.  The proposed use of 
the land would prevent material going to landfill and was sited away from properties.  
The applicant recognising the strong local concerns regarding traffic was happy to 
enter into a routeing agreement but considered it unreasonable to have to pay a 
security deposit as outlined in the Council’s lorry routeing protocol as he had a 
tracking system to monitor lorry movements and as there would only be a maximum 
of 3 movements an hour with no history of persistent breaches the County Council 
needed to demonstrate that such a payment was justified. 
 
She then responded to: 
 
Councillor Johnston – confirmed all company vehicles were fitted with the tracking 
device. 
 
Councillor Roberts – only company lorries and vehicles were used.  There were no 
sub-contractors. 
 
Councillor Mathew confirmed that active recycling and preparatory work had been 
carried out prior to permission being obtained. He supported recycling and secondary 
aggregate production but had concerns regarding noise and dust including for those 
working next door to the operation. He continued to have concerns over the use of 
B449 through Sutton and its impact on residents.  He queried whether the applicant 
had permission to use a private haul road and quoting County Council policy that no 
new applications would be approved until a Sutton bypass had been built stressed 
that the present situation remained unacceptable. 
 
Responding to Councillor Fox-Davies he confirmed that the routeing agreement had 
not been flouted by D & M Plant Hire but they had, in his view, not shown respect to 
planning regulations. 
 
Councillor Reynolds expressed concern regarding incremental gain.  Applications 
individually often seemed to be acceptable but that was not the case collectively and 
he was against this application on the grounds of concern regarding heavy traffic and 
the impact on Sutton residents living close to the road. 
 
Councillor Johnston stated that there needed to be a demonstration of severe harm in 
order to justify refusal of an application but he did not consider thatthat  had been 
done in this case. 

Page 11



PN3 

 
RESOLVED: (on a motion by Councillor Fox-Davis, seconded by Councillor Johnston 
and carried by 7 votes to 2, Councillor Sames and Councillor Reynolds recorded as 
voting against) that subject to a routeing agreement first being entered into planning 
permission for Application MW.0059/19 be approved subject to  
 
(i) conditions to be determined by the Director for Planning and Place including the 

matters set out at Annex 3 to the report PN9; and  
(ii) an informative on the consent stating that the reason that a security deposit was 

not sought for the routeing agreement was that the applicant did not have a 
poor track record of complying with routeing agreements. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 in the Chair 

  
Date of signing   

 
 
 
 

Page 12



PN6 
 

 
 
For: PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE – 9 December 2019 
 
By: DIRECTOR FOR PLANNING AND PLACE  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Divisions Affected: All  
 
Contact Officer:  Mary Hudson  Tel: 07393 001 257 
 
Recommendation  
 
It is RECOMMENDED that:  
 
(a)  the draft revised Local List of Information Requirements as set out at 

Annex 1 to this report be subject to a three-week period of public 
consultation;  
 

(b)   if after that period and following further consultation with the Chairman and 
Deputy Chairman of the Planning & Regulation Committee, it was 
considered that no significant changes were required to the draft revised 
Local List of Information Requirements then the Director for Planning and 
Place be authorised to adopt and publish that list,  
 

(c)   if, however, after that period and following further consultation with the 
Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Planning & Regulation Committee, 
it was considered that significant changes were required to the draft 
revised Local List of Information Requirements, the matter be reported 
back to the Planning and Regulation Committee for further consideration.  

 
Introduction 
 
1. It is a statutory requirement that the Local List of Information 

Requirements for the Validation of Planning and Related Applications (the 
Local List) is updated at least every two years. If it has not been revised 
within two years, then it cannot be used for the purposes of validating 
planning applications.  

 
2. Planning and Regulation Committee considered the current Local List on 

16 October 2017 and resolved to adopt and publish the list following a 

Update to Local List of Information Requirements for Validation of 
Planning and Related Applications  

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



PN6 
 

period of public consultation and further consultation with the Chairman 
and Deputy Chairman of the Planning & Regulation Committee. The 
consultation was held in February and March 2018 and the current Local 
List was published on the website in March 2018. Therefore, it is due for 
updating by March 2020.  

 
3. The list has been reviewed following an informal consultation with internal 

consultees. There have been no significant changes to the drivers for 
individual items on the list; therefore, no major changes are necessary to 
the items on the list. No new items are proposed for this list and the 
proposed modifications are minor changes to the detail in the supporting 
text. 
 

Proposed Modifications 
 

4. The proposed revised Local List is provided at Annex 1. For comparison, 
the existing Local List is available on the website: 
https://www2.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/sites/default/files/folders/documents/
environmentandplanning/planning/planningpolicy/ValidationChecklist.pdf  

 
5. No additional items are proposed for inclusion in the revised checklist. 
 
6. Proposed changes to the supporting text would include: 

• Update to the sections on requirements for Heritage and Archaeological 
Statements, to refer to a Written Scheme of Investigation rather than a 
brief. This is following the advice of the archaeology team.  

• Update to the section on Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment to 
clarify when this will be required and what should be included and to the 
section on Landscaping Schemes to confirm what these should include, 
following advice from Oxfordshire County Council’s Landscape 
Specialist, which is a new role since the current version of the list was 
adopted.  

•  Minor additions to the supporting text in relation to the requirements for 
an Aftercare and Restoration scheme, to include reference to 
enhancement of the soil ecosystem and to set out the requirements for 
a Restoration Plan. 

•  Additional text and links in the section on Outdoor Lighting Schemes, to 
refer to fact that Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) are 
particularly sensitive to light pollution.  

•   Updates to the section on the Statement of Community Involvement 
(SCI), to reflect that a revised SCI is due to be published in December 
2019.  

•   The section on Tree Surveys, Hedgerow Surveys and Arboricultural 
Statements has been re-written by the officer currently responsible for 
considering these matters when applications are assessed.  

 

Page 14

https://www2.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/sites/default/files/folders/documents/environmentandplanning/planning/planningpolicy/ValidationChecklist.pdf
https://www2.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/sites/default/files/folders/documents/environmentandplanning/planning/planningpolicy/ValidationChecklist.pdf


PN6 
 

7. There would also be further minor changes to remove or update broken 
weblinks and update references to legislation, policy and guidance which 
have been superseded or updated. For example, the NPPF has been 
revised since the current Local List was adopted and therefore NPPF 
paragraph references will need to be updated. Typos would be corrected, 
and the layout improved. 

 
Consultation  
 
8. The National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) advises that when 

reviewing its Local List, local planning authorities should consult on any 
proposed changes. Where no changes are necessary, an announcement 
to this effect should be placed on the website and the previous Local List 
should be republished.  

 
9.  It is proposed that there should be a 21-day consultation on the decision 

to republish the existing local list with a minor change to information 
requirements and minor changes to the text. This consultation would 
include local Parish Councils and Parish Meetings, organisations who are 
consulted on planning applications and applicants and agents. This would 
allow an opportunity for anyone who felt that there should be any changes 
to the Local List to propose those changes for consideration.  

 
Conclusions 

 
10. It is not anticipated that any major changes will come out of the proposed 

consultation on the review of the Local List, as there have been no 
significant changes in policy since the document was last revised in March 
2018. However, should any significant changes arise out of the 
consultation, the matter would be reported back to Planning & Regulation 
committee.  

 
 
 
 

SUE HALLIWELL 
Director for Planning and Place 
 
November 2019 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



PN6 
 
 

 

Validation of County 
Development and 
County Matters 

Planning Applications – 
Local List  

 
 
 

March 2020 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 17



PN6 
 

 

1.  INTRODUCTION 
 

The purpose of this document is to provide users of Oxfordshire County Council‘s   
Development Management Service with  clear guidance about what information 
is required when submitting a planning application. The aims of the document 
are to: 

 
    Ensure submissions are ‘f it for purpose‘ and that all necessary information 

is provided to enable the application to be determined and the planning 
permission and conditions to be drafted; 

 
     Speed up the planning application process and make it more efficient by 

minimising the need for further information to be provided during the 
application processing period; and 

 

    Provide applicants with greater certainty of the scope and extent of the 
information required. 

 

Local authorities are not expected to be prescriptive or over-onerous in the use of 
the Local List and it is intended that only those items on it which are clearly 
relevant to an application proposal should be used as reasons for non-validation 
of an application. Applicants have a right of appeal where a local authority uses 
items on the Local List to not validate an application and the applicant considers 
that the information required is not 
relevant. 

 
For t h e  purposes of this document, a planning application is an application: 
• for outline or full planning permission; 
• for approval of reserved matters pursuant to an outline permission,  
• pursuant to Section 73 of the 1990 Act to carry out a development other than in 
accordance with conditions previously attached to a planning permission; or 
 • Section 73A of the 1990 Act for development already carried out.  
 
Reference to other applications includes applications: 
• for the Non-material amendments to planning permissions; 
• Lawful Development Certificates (either for existing or proposed use or 
development); and 
•  applications  for  the  discharge  of  conditions  attached  to planning 
permissions (details pursuant applications). 

 
Standard planning application form: 1APP 

 
There is a mandatory, standard application form (known as 1APP) for all types 
of application for planning permission, apart from applications for the use of land 
for working mineral deposits.   The appropriate 1APP form is available to 
download from either the County Council‘s own   website   or   the   Planning   
Portal   website.   Applicants   are   positively encouraged  to  submit  their  
applications  with  supporting  documents  on-line Page 18



PN6 
 

through the Planning Portal website at  www.planningportal.gov.uk as this assists 
in reducing administrative time and costs of determining the application. 

 
Validation checklists 

 
Validation means what is required to enable the County Council to register and 
process a planning application through to determination.  The validation checklist 
system consists of a ‗national list and a local list of information requirements 
adopted by the County Council for that purpose. 

 
What is the difference between the national list and the local list? 

 
The compulsory requirements (the national list) are listed in the Part One: 
Statutory national requirements below.   This information must be submitted 
with all planning applications (unless otherwise indicated in the validation 
checklist) and is the same throughout the country. 

 
Part   Two:      Local   Information   Requirements   sets   out   the   additional 
information Oxfordshire County Council might require from applicants if it 
considers it relevant to the application.   This additional checklist is sometimes 
referred to as the ‘Local List’. 

 
Part Three: Validation Checklist sets out when information is required.  

 
If the information that is required i n t h e V a l id a t io n C hecklist is not included 
with any application  for  planning  permission  the  Council  will  declare  the 
application invalid and not register or process it.  If this is the case the Council 
will set out the reasons for declaring the application invalid, in writing, to the 
applicant. 

 
The validation requirements refer only to the information required to validate the 
application but the applicant should be aware that the County Planning Authority 
may still require and request further information where it considers it necessary to 
determine the application.  The validation checklist is not exhaustive and simply 
aims to cover the most common requirements of applications.  Pre-application 
discussion with a Planning Officer is encouraged. 

 

 

2.  PRE-APPLICATION DISCUSSIONS 
 
The County Council encourages applicants to discuss planning proposals with 
the  Development  M a n a g e m e n t  Team  before  submitting  an  application.    
This approach aids in the delivery of  a more efficient service by advising on the 
likely success of potential development prior to formal submission.   The benefits 
to  developers include identifying potential problem areas and information 
requirements avoiding the submission of  an  incomplete application and 
thereby giving the applicant a faster decision once the application is made.  
The request form can be submitted electronically 

Page 19

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/


PN6 
 

or manually.   The Council charges a fee for these  enquiries  and  will  aim  to 
provide  a  full  written  response  within  21 working days  of  receipt  unless  we 
agree to extend this timescale.  The written response will include identification of 
the  main  environmental  constraints,  relevant  planning  policies  and  planning 
history of the site and the supporting information likely to be required with the 
application along with contact details for key consultees. 

 
Pre-application discussion between the Council, relevant consultees (subject to 
availability) and the applicant will establish what information and details from the 
Local Information Requirements contained in the Validation Checklist    should be 
submitted with a planning application. This can help minimise delays later in 
processing the application. Such discussions may also identify whether other 
consents or permits may be required in addition to planning permission.      It  will 
also   provide   an   opportunity  to   highlight   pre-application   requirements,  for 
example: 

    The need for an Environmental Impact Assessment of the proposal under the 
Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 
2017; 
Hydrological monitoring as required by the Environment Agency; 
Baseline   monitoring of the environment prior to development to allow the 
accurate assessment of any adverse environmental impact arising from the 
proposed development. Such information will be essential to the preparation 
of environmental statements, landscape appraisal and visual impact 
assessment, noise assessment etc; 

    Landscape enhancement, ecological survey and/or archaeological 
assessment where appropriate; and 
Pre-application public consultation. 
Agree the description of development.  The County Planning Authority should 
not  alter  the  description  of  development  on  the  application  form  without 
written agreement from the applicant 

 

The Environment Agency operates a scheme to charge for planning advice outside 

its statutory role. Natural England also operates a Discretionary Advice Service: 

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/developers-get-environmental-advice-on-your-
planning-proposals  

 
 
 

3.   VALIDATION PROCESS 
 

The applicant has the option of making a planning application electronically or 
using a paper copy of the 1APP form.  Applicants who choose not to apply on- 
line will be required to submit a minimum of four complete sets of the completed 
application form and all the supporting plans and documentation.    The County 
Planning Authority may also request further sets of plans but will not refuse to 
process the application for this reason.  All applications for planning permission 
however received will be checked against Statutory national information 
requirements. 

 
Where a planning application is received that does not contain the information 
listed in Page 20

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/developers-get-environmental-advice-on-your-planning-proposals
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/developers-get-environmental-advice-on-your-planning-proposals


PN6 
 

Part One: Statutory national information requirements the application will be 

treated  as  invalid  under  article  11(5)  of  the  Town  and  Country  Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (DMPO) and the 
applicant  informed  in  writing  with  the requirements necessary to validate it. 
Applicants  who  want  to  challenge  the invalidity in this case have no right of 
appeal but may consider a claim for judicial review on legal grounds. 

 
Where a planning application does not include information listed in Part Two: 
Local  information   requirements,   that   the   Council   considers   should   be 
provided, then the application will be  treated as invalid and the applicant will 
be  informed  in writing  with  an  explanation  as  to  w h a t  p a r t i c u l a r s  a n d 
e v i d e n c e  a r e  r e q u i r e d  to  ensure  validation.   If  the applicant  disagrees 
with the Council‘s reason(s) for invalidating the application, he/she can serve 
notice on the Council setting out which particulars or evidence he/she considers 
are not necessary for the application to be valid with reasons for that view and 
requesting that the Council waive the requirements. If the Council accepts this 
then it will notify the applicant in writing that the application is valid (a validation 
notice). If it does not waive any requirement then it will notify the applicant in 
writing that the application is not valid (a non-validation notice). The applicant has 
the right of appeal for the non-determination of a non-validated application after 8, 
13 or 16 weeks as appropriate for the application type. 

 
The  County  Planning  Authority  will  start  the  process  of  determining  the 
application as soon as a valid application including the full fee is received.  An 
acknowledgement will be sent giving the date the application was registered and 
the date by which the decision should be made. A valid application is registered 
on the day of receipt. If the application is received electronically through the 
Planning Portal it will be treated as having being delivered at 9am on the next 
working day after the day it was transmitted. 

 
Where supporting information  is  subsequently found  to  be  inadequate  or  its 
quality is of concern, the time period for determination of 8, 13 or 16 weeks 
(dependent upon application type) is not stopped whilst additional information is 
requested from the applicant. Whilst this document contains the authority‘s 
general requirements for the type of supporting information, the authority may 
make a further direction specific to any particular application in accordance with 
regulation 4 of the Applications Regulations 1988.  A direction to the applicant to 
provide further information should only be made when necessary to assist the 
County Planning Authority in its determination of an application and it must not 
affect the validity of an application where it has been validated. 

 
Where a fee in respect of an application is paid by cheque which is subsequently 
dishonoured or an electronic payment which is declined, the start date for 
processing  the  application  will  be  re-set  to  the  day  immediately  after  the 
County Planning Authority is satisfied that the full fee has been received. 

Page 21



PN6 
 

4. CONTACTS: 
 
If you have any enquiries relating to submitting a planning application, 
please contact us by: - 

 
E-mail:planning@oxfordshire.gov.uk  or write to: 

 

Development Management Team Leader 
Communities 
Oxfordshire County Council  
County Hall 
New Road 
Oxford 
OX1 1ND 

 

Our Website:  www.oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Page 22

mailto:planning@oxfordshire.gov.uk
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/


PN6 
 

PART ONE: STATUTORY NATIONAL INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS: 
 
Applicants   are encouraged   to   supply documentation   which   has   been 
produced electronically in that format.  This applies whether the application is 
made on-line or whether a paper application is made. This facilitates the 
transfer of information to consultees and for the public to view planning 
proposals on-line without the need to have to visit the C o u n t y o r D i s t r i c t 
C o u n c i l Offices.  It would be appreciated if the scale of the plans and paper 
size is no larger than is required to illustrate the proposals.  Drawings should 
avoid the use of unnecessary blocks of colour which all increase the costs of 
printing. 

 

 

The   national   standards   for   on-line   submission   of   electronic   planning 
documents are as follows: 

 
Maximum single file size is 5 Mbytes; 

Maximum 25 Mbytes file size (the sum of all document file sizes).  

   Portable Document Format (PDF) is the recommended file format to 
ensure that they are accessible to consultees; 

All drawings shall be saved in a single layer; 

All drawings shall specify the printing page size for which the scale 
applies; 

All drawings shall be correctly orientated for on-screen display 

All drawings shall include a scale bar and key dimensions; All 
documents and drawings shall be named in accordance with the 
Royal Institute of British Architects’ naming conventions. 

     Scanned documents must be a minimum of 200 dpi resolution for 
black and white and 100 dpi for colour; All photographs in PDF file 
format and no larger than 15 cm x 10 cm. 

 

 
Unless the application is made electronically (on-line through the 
Planning Portal, by e-mail, on a CD or DVD) the original and a minimum of 
3 additional paper copies of the following documents are required:  
 
i.      Application forms: 

 
The Council‘s relevant 1APP application form(s) are required and these must 
be signed and dated with all relevant sections completed. Separate    forms 
are available for applications relating to minerals related development, as 
this is not yet covered by 1APP.   These can be downloaded from the 
Planning Portal or the County Council’s website, or obtained   by contacting 
the Development Management team as set out above. 

 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-
planning/planning/make-planning-application/making-planning-application  
 
or Planning Portal 1 – APP: 

 
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/planningapplications 

Page 23

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/planning/make-planning-application/making-planning-application
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/planning/make-planning-application/making-planning-application
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/planningapplications


PN6 
 

ii.       Application Fee: 
 
Planning    applications    and    other    submissions    cannot    be    processed 
without payment of the correct fee, as determined in the Town and Country 
Planning (Fees for   Planning   Applications)   Regulations 1989 (as amended). 
A detailed explanation of planning fees is contained in Circular 04/2008 P l a 
n n i n g R e l a t e d F e e s or the Planning  Portal‘s  fee  calculator  can  be  
used. Payment by cheque or making an electronic payment for the correct fee 
amount will be taken as payment   of   the   application   fee.  Cheques should   
be   made payable to Oxfordshire County Council. If the cheque is 
subsequently dishonoured or payment  refused,  the  application  becomes  
invalid  until  such  time  as  the correct fee is received.  See validation process 
above. 
 
Fees can also be paid by BACS transfer using the following details: 
 

Sort Code 30-00-02 

Account number 00162197 

Account Name Oxfordshire County Council.  

A reference should also be provided, as agreed with the Planning Officer, to 

ensure the payment can be located.  

 
The current application fees may be viewed via the planning portal: 

 
https://www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200126/applications/59/how_to_apply/7  
 

Planning Policy Drivers or related Guidance 

• National Planning Practice Guidance – Fees for Planning Applications 

http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/guidance/fees-for-planning- 

applications/ 
 

 
 

iii.      Ownership & Agricultural Holding Certificates: 
 
A  completed,  signed   and   dated   Ownership  Certificate   A,   B,  C  or  D 
i n c o r p o r a t i n g     t h e     A g r i c u l t u r a l     H o l d i n g s     C e r t i f i c a t e 
m u s t  be submitted as set out under Section 65(5) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990,  and  Section  10  of  the  Town  and  Country  Planning 
( Development  Management    Procedure)  (England)  Order  2015.    These 
certificates are part of the 1APP standard form.        The ownership certificate 
states the ownership of the whole of the application site, including land which 
gives access to the site from the   public   highway   or   where   development 
abuts    or    simply    overhangs    the boundary  with  the  adjoining  land  or 
property. For this purpose an owner is anyone with a freehold interest or 
leasehold interest, the unexpired term of which is not less than 7 years. 

 
Where the applicant is the sole owner of the land at the beginning of a period 
of 21  days before  the  application is submitted, certificate A is completed. 
Where this is not the case certificate B should be completed where the names 
and addresses of the other owners are known. Notice(s) need to be served on 

Page 24

https://www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200126/applications/59/how_to_apply/7
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/guidance/fees-for-planning-
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/fees-for-planning-applications/


PN6 
 

every owner of any part of the land to which the application site relates 21 
days before the application is submitted. Certificate C should be completed 
where some but not all of the names and addresses of the other owners are 
known and certificate D where none of the other owners names or addresses is 
known. In the case of there being any unknown owners, an advertisement must 
be placed by the applicant in a local paper for a period of at least 21 days prior 
to submission of the application.  The applicant will need to specify the steps 
undertaken to find owners such as Land Registry enquiries. 

 
All agricultural tenants (as defined by the Agricultural Holdings Act 1986) must 
be   notified   prior to the submission of the application and their names 
and addresses provided. If the land does not form part of an Agricultural 
Holding then this must be confirmed. 

 
iv.      Design and Access 
Statement: 

 

 

A  Design   and   Access   Statement  (DAS)  must  accompany  planning 
applications for: 

 

• Applications for major development (where the site area is 1 ha or   
more or the new floorspace to be created would be 1,000 m2 or more); 

• where     any  part  of  the  development  is  in  a  designated  area  
(A Conservation Area or a World Heritage Site) development consisting 
of— 

 

(i) the provision of one or more dwelling houses; or 
(ii)  the provision of a building or buildings where the floor space 

created by the development is 100 m2 or more. 

 
A statement will not be required 
for: 

 

(a)  permission to develop land without compliance with conditions 
previously attached, made pursuant to section 73 of the 1990 Act; 

(b) engineering or mining 
operations; 
(c) a material change in use of the land or 
buildings; (d) development which is waste 
development. 

 

 
Further advice can be found in the Planning Practice Guidance: 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/making-an-application#Design-and-Access-
Statement  

 
Planning Policy Drivers or related 
Guidance 

The Town and Country  Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(England) Order 2015 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/pdfs/uksi_20150595_en. 
pdf 

 

 
v.     Location Plan: 

Page 25

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/making-an-application#Design-and-Access-Statement
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/making-an-application#Design-and-Access-Statement
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/pdfs/uksi_20150595_en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/pdfs/uksi_20150595_en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/pdfs/uksi_20150595_en.pdf


PN6 
 

 
The location of the application site shall be identified on a plan based on an 
up to date Ordnance Survey Map at a suitable metric scale proportionate to 
the size of the development. 

 

 

Plans should be clearly titled, given a unique reference number and dated. 
The plans should wherever possible show at least two named roads and 
surrounding  buildings  and  the  properties  shown  should  be  numbered  or 
named to ensure that the exact location of the application site is clear. 

 
The application site must be edged clearly with a solid red line and include 
all  land   necessary   to  carry  out  the  proposed  development  ( e.g.  land 
required for access to the site from a public highway, visibility splays, 
landscape treatment, car parking and open areas around the buildings).  The 
size of the application site can in some cases determine the fee payable for 
the application and should be carefully drawn.* 

 
A blue line must be drawn around any other land owned by the applicant, 
close to or adjoining the application site.* 

 

 
* These may instead be shown on the Site Plan if the Location Plan scale 
is not appropriate to accurately show the required detail. 

 
vi.    Site Plan: 

 
The site plan should be submitted at a scale 
of: 

 

    1:200 or 1:500 for planning applications for most built development;. 
 

    1:1250 or 1:2500 for minerals and waste development or other 
development over an area of 1 ha or more. 

 

Plans should be clearly titled and given a unique reference number and 
dated. The plans should accurately show: 

 

    The direction of North; 
 

   The proposed development  in  relation  to  the  site  boundaries  and 
other existing  buildings  on  the  site,  with  written  dimensions  including 
those to the boundaries. 

 
And the following unless these would not influence or be affected by

Page 26



PN6 
 

the proposed development: 
 

    All the buildings, roads and footpaths on land adjoining the site 
including access arrangements. 
All public rights of way crossing or adjoining the site; 
The position of all trees and other structural vegetation such as hedgerows on 
the site and those on adjacent land;  
Location, type and extent of any notable features such as 
ponds, veteran trees etc 

 The extent and type of any hard surfacing; and  
 Boundary treatment including walls or fencing where this is proposed. 

 
The Site Plan may also show the red line for the application area and the blue 
line for land in the applicant’s ownership if this can be shown more accurately 
than would be possible at the location plan’s scale. 

 

 

Updates and superseded plans 
 

 

If the applicant   needs   to   update   or   replace   a   supporting   plan   or 
document, the updated or replacement document should be clearly labelled 
as another version of the document e.g. Revision A and, if submitted through 
the Planning Portal, the County Planning Authority informed of the title of the 
replacement document. Where plans are updated, the applicant should provide 
guidance as to the updates made, either by way of listing the changes made or 
clearly identifying the changes on the plans.

Page 27



PN6 
 

PART TWO - LOCAL INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS 

Other Plans: 

In  addition  to  the  location  plan  and  site  plan,  other  plans  should  be 
submitted (dependent on the type of application and development proposed) 
to  explain  the proposal  in  detail.    The  drawings  submitted  should  show 
details of the existing building(s) as well as those for the proposed 
development. Where  existing buildings and or walls are to be demolished 
these should also be clearly shown. Drawings should  be  d r a w n  t o  a n 
i d e n t i f i e d  s c a l e ,  clearly a n d  l o g i c a l l y  titled,  show the  direction  of 
north and be given a unique reference number and dated. 

 
Block Plan 

 
The plan should be of a scale of 1:100 or 1:200 showing  any site 
boundaries;  the  type  and   height  of  boundary  treatment   (e.g.  walls, 
fences   etc);  and  the  position  of any  building  or structure on  the  other 
side of such boundaries. 

 
Existing and proposed elevations 

 
All elevations should be submitted drawn to a scale of 1:50 or 1:100 and 
should show clearly the proposed works in relation to what is already there. 
Elevations should be clearly titled and given a unique reference number, 
signed and dated. All sides of the proposal must be shown and orientations 
labelled.  It will not be sufficient to state front, side and rear elevation. 

 
Elevations   should   indicate   the   proposed   building   materials   and   the 
style, materials and  finish  of  windows  and  doors.  Blank  elevations   must 
also be included; if only to show that this is in fact the case. 

 
Where a proposed elevation adjoins another building or is in close proximity, 
the drawings  should  clearly  show  the  relationship  between  the  buildings, 
and detail the positions of the openings on each property. 

 
Existing and Proposed Floor plans 

 
These should be shown at a scale of 1:50 or 1:100 and be labelled to show 
the existing and proposed usage. Where buildings or walls are to be 
demolished these should be clearly shown.    New    buildings    should    be 
shown in relation to adjacent buildings. 

 
Existing and Proposed site Sections and finished floor and site 
levels 

 
In cases where a proposal involves a change in ground levels or is on a 
sloping site, drawings  at a 1:50, 1:100 or 1:200 scale should be submitted 
showing  a cross  section  through  the  proposed  building or  site to include 
details of foundations and eaves and how encroachment onto adjoining land 
is to be avoided.  D rawings should be submitted to show both existing and 
finished levels.   The drawings may take the form of contours, spot levels or 
cross or long sections as appropriate and should be correlated to Ordnance 
Survey Datum height or to a clear, permanent and accessible local datum. 

Page 28



PN6 
 

 

 

Roof Plan 
 

A roof plan is used to show the shape of the roof and is typically drawn at a 
scale smaller that the scale used for floor plans.     Details  such  as  roofing 
materials, vents and their location are typically specified on a roof plan. 

 
Please note: Plans should not contain the phrase ‘Do not scale’ and if 
not drawn to scale will not be accepted other than when clearly stated to 
be solely for illustrative purposes. 

 
All plans should be scaled to fit A4 or A3 sized paper (unless agreed with 
the Planning Officer that larger size paper is appropriate) and must have: 
• a title 
• a scale 
• a legend 
• units of measurement noted 
• north arrow if relevant 
• a unique reference number.  

Highway Plans 

Any drawings of proposed highway works should be supplied as separate 
drawings, in separate files, as well as being referenced in the Transport 
Assessment.  
 
Aftercare and Restoration scheme 

Mineral and waste planning applications need to demonstrate how the site is 
proposed to be restored.   Details should include the type of material with 
which the site would be infilled, sources and volumes of materials to be used 
in restoration, working methods, the end use of the site such as agriculture, 
woodland or habitat creation and the reason for the choice.   Should the 
proposal involve the disturbance of existing agricultural land, details of soil 
resources, including consideration of the ecosystem value of the soil resource, 
and the Agricultural Land Classification will need to be provided as well as a 
statement of what the intended restored grade the land would be. It will usually 
include a soil handling strategy indicating the methodology for soil stripping, 
storage and replacement, the plant and machinery to be used and proposals 
for the restoration and where appropriate enhancement of the soil ecosystem, in 
particular through consideration of the role of soil organic matter.  
 

A restoration plan should be provided showing the site boundary, site context, 

proposed contours, proposed habitats and land uses, proposed planting, 

proposed features (e.g. waterbodies, log piles, etc), plant specification and 

notes on implementation and management. 

A phasing plan may be required to show how the site  would  be  progressively  
restored  over  a  period  of  years  following extraction and infilling of the 
ground.   

 

A topographical survey showing predevelopment contours and proposed 
contours will be required. Details of ground contours on completion and at the 
end of the aftercare period should be provided, to show settlement.    

Page 29



PN6 
 

 

An aftercare management plan would also be required setting out how the 
site would be maintained and monitored for a period of 5 years following the 
final restoration of the site. This should include details of how the management 
plan will be monitored and updated during the aftercare period and what 
measures will be put in place to ensure that the desired restoration outcomes 
are achieved. 

 
NB Established standard practice in Oxfordshire is to have 20 years of long- 
term management in addition to 5 years of aftercare, secured through 
Section 106 agreement. 

 

Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 
  
• The National Planning Policy Framework (2019) – paragraphs 170, 

174, 204, 205 
 

• Guidance for Planning and aftercare advice for reclaiming land to 
agricultural use 

 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/reclaim-minerals-

extraction-and-landfill-sites-to-agriculture/planning-and-aftercare-
advice-for-reclaiming-land-to-agricultural-use 

 
• National Planning Practice Guidance – Restoration and Aftercare of 

Minerals Sites:  
 

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/minerals#Restoration-and-aftercare-of-
minerals  

 
• RSPB (2006): Nature After Minerals: how mineral site restoration can 

benefit people and wildlife 
 

https://www.rspb.org.uk/our-work/our-positions-and-casework/our-
positions/land-use-planning/minerals-planning/  

 
 Bohgal, A. et al; 2009, Best Practice for Managing Soil Organic Matter in 

Agriculture – Manual of Methods for ‘Lowland’ Agriculture, ADAS, July 
2009 

 
 

 

Air Quality 
 
All proposals that have the potential to have an adverse impact on air quality, 
including impacts on human health and sensitive ecological habitats, sites and 
species both during the construction phase and the operational phase will 
require assessment of any adverse effects and the submission of a scheme 
detailing how the application will limit its impact on the surrounding 
environment. This will include proposals which will significantly alter the 
traffic composition in an area  such  as  heavy  goods  delivery  traffic  or  
industrial  activities  with significant emissions to the atmosphere regulated by 
Environmental Permit or introduction of a new school or public building close 
to an existing source of air pollution Any application that has the potential to 
generate increased dust should include a dust suppression scheme will need 
to indicate how the applicant will minimise the impact of dust on the 
surrounding area. 

 
Where the development is proposed inside, or adjacent to, an air quality 
management area (AQMA), where the development could in itself result in the 
designation of an AQMA or where the grant of planning permission would 
conflict with, or render unworkable, elements of a Planning Authority‘s air 
quality action plan, applications should be supported by such information as is 
necessary to allow a full consideration of the impact of the proposal on the air 

Page 30

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/reclaim-minerals-extraction-and-landfill-sites-to-agriculture/planning-and-aftercare-advice-for-reclaiming-land-to-agricultural-use
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/reclaim-minerals-extraction-and-landfill-sites-to-agriculture/planning-and-aftercare-advice-for-reclaiming-land-to-agricultural-use
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/reclaim-minerals-extraction-and-landfill-sites-to-agriculture/planning-and-aftercare-advice-for-reclaiming-land-to-agricultural-use
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/minerals#Restoration-and-aftercare-of-minerals
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/minerals#Restoration-and-aftercare-of-minerals


PN6 
 

quality of the area. 
 
 

Air Quality Management Areas are defined by the District Councils and details 
can be found on their websites. 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 

• The National Planning Policy Framework February 2019 - paragraphs 181 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6 
077/2116950.pdf 

 

 
 

•         The APIS website 

 
http://www.apis.ac.uk/ 

 

• National Planning Practice Guidance – How Detailed Does An Air Quality 
Assessment Need to Be 

 
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/air-quality/how- 
detailed-does-an-air-quality-assessment-need-to-be/ 

 

Bioaerosol Assessment 
 
Applications that involve the handling, storage or treatment of biodegradable 
waste, particularly composting applications, will need to be accompanied by a 
bioaerosol Assessment.  This will provide a risk assessment to ascertain the 
potential impacts on neighbouring sensitive properties or other sensitive 
locations. Bioaerosol assessments should identify sources, pathways and 
receptors, paying particular  attention  to  sensitive  receptors  and  including 

mitigation measures. 
 

 

Environment Agency - Guidance for developments requiring planning 
permission and environmental permits 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data 
/file/297009/LIT_7260_bba627.pdf 

 
Biodiversity and Geodiversity Assessment 

 
The Planning Authority has a duty to consider the conservation and 
enhancement of biodiversity when determining a planning application. This is 
in accordance with relevant policies within the Local Plans/Local Development 
Frameworks, Oxfordshire’s Biodiversity Action Plan and Conservation Target 
Areas and National Policy Guidance set out in the National Planning Policy 
Framework and DEFRA Circular 06/2005. 
In addition statutory requirements under legislation including the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981, the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 
2017, the Badgers Act 1992, as well as the general biodiversity duty placed on 
Local Authorities within  Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural 
Communities Act 2006 must be taken into account. 

 

 
 

Local requirements indicating how biodiversity and/or geodiversity should be 
considered by planning applications are set out in Appendices 1 to 5 and 
applicants should ensure that they follow the guidance in the British Standard 

Page 31

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
http://www.apis.ac.uk/
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/air-quality/how-detailed-does-an-air-quality-assessment-need-to-be/
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/air-quality/how-detailed-does-an-air-quality-assessment-need-to-be/
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/air-quality/how-detailed-does-an-air-quality-assessment-need-to-be/
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/297009/LIT_7260_bba627.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/297009/LIT_7260_bba627.pdf
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/acts/acts2006/ukpga_20060016_en.pdf
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/acts/acts2006/ukpga_20060016_en.pdf
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/acts/acts2006/ukpga_20060016_en.pdf


PN6 
 

BS42020 (Biodiversity – Code of Practice for Planning & Development (2013) 
and in the Oxfordshire Biodiversity & Planning Guidance Document: 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-
planning/countryside/natural-environment/environmental-policy-and-
planning/biodiversity-and-planning ] The local requirements are presented so 
as to assist the applicant to not only answer the questions on the main 1APP 
form, but also supply the relevant biodiversity  and/or  geodiversity  
information  that  will  allow  the  Planning Authority to validate and 
determine the application.  If impacts to biodiversity and/or geodiversity are 
indicated by the requirements, and supporting information is NOT supplied to 
the Planning Authority, then the application will not be validated. 

 
Consideration of the conservation of biodiversity and geodiversity when 
determining a planning application includes: 

 
designated sites 

legally protected species 

habitats and species of principal importance for biodiversity (priority 
species and habitats) 

           habitats and species with plans in Oxfordshire’s Biodiversity Action 
Plan and Conservation Target Areas and/or geological features 
highlighted in  a  Oxfordshire’s  Local  Geodiversity  Action  Plan  for 
Lower and Middle Jurassic and the Local Geodiversity Action Plan for 
the North Wessex Downs AONB. 

 
Where a proposed development is likely to affect such a site, species, habitat 
or geological feature, the applicant should normally submit a Survey and 
Assessment.  Information and guidance on when a Survey and Assessment is 
required to validate an application is provided in Appendices 1 to 4. 

 
Natural England can also advise on such requirements where there is a 
potential impact on nationally designated sites and/or legally protected species. 
See  the  Natural  England  website  (www.naturalengland.org.uk)  for  further 
advice and relevant contacts. 

 
 

Information required for ecology reports 
 
Ecology reports submitted as part of a planning application must include a data 
search from the  Thames Valley Environmental Records Centre (TVERC) rather 
than the NBN Gateway or MAGIC, unless it has previously been agreed with a 
planning officer that this is not necessary. 

 

Submitting a desk study including data from TVERC will avoid unnecessary and 
costly delays to processing the planning application and ensures the application 
complies with the  National Planning Policy Framework and the  NBN Gateways 
terms & conditions. 

 

The authors of ecological survey reports for planning applications should be 
able to answer ‘Yes’ to all of the following questions: 
- Do you have access to all the records at the highest available resolution? 
- Do you have written permission from all the data providers to use their data in 
this way? 
- Did you also contact TVERC to ensure that they have access to records which 
are not yet on the NBN Gateway? 

 

Page 32

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/countryside/natural-environment/environmental-policy-and-planning/biodiversity-and-planning
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/countryside/natural-environment/environmental-policy-and-planning/biodiversity-and-planning
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-planning/countryside/natural-environment/environmental-policy-and-planning/biodiversity-and-planning
http://www.naturalengland.org.uk/
http://www.tverc.org/
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
http://data.nbn.org.uk/help/popups/generalTerms.jsp#2
http://data.nbn.org.uk/help/popups/generalTerms.jsp#2
http://data.nbn.org.uk/help/popups/generalTerms.jsp#2


PN6 
 

If you cannot answer ‘Yes’ to the above questions, the planning application may 
not be validated. 

 

Any suspected breaches of data providers’ copyright or terms and conditions will 
be reported by the local planning authority to the data provider, who may take 
appropriate action. 

 
 

Informative –  Appropriate Assessment 
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations   2017, the  Planning  Authority  may  have  to  carry  out  an 

Appropriate Assessment. Appropriate Assessment tests whether a proposal 

either alone or in combination with other development in proximity of the 
following sites is likely to have a significant negative impact on: 

 
 Designated or potential Special Protection Areas – a European 

designation which protects birds; 
 Designated or candidate Special Areas of Conservation – a European 

designation which protects habitats; 

 Ramsar  or  proposed  Ramsar  sites  –  an international  designation  

which protects wetlands. 
 
It is recommended that Natural England should be consulted prior to the 
submission of an application to determine if there is likely to be a significant 
impact.   Appropriate Assessment does not apply to other designations, like 
Sites of Special Scientific Interest or Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

• The National Planning Policy Framework February  2019 paragraphs 170, 
171, 174, 175, 176 and 177 

 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--
2  
• Planning for Sustainable Waste Management: Companion Guide to 

Planning Policy Statement 10 - annex A 
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/7 
780/150805.pdf 

 
• Circular 06/2005 Biodiversity and  Geological Conservation – 

Statutory Obligations and  Their Impact Within The Planning System 
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/biodiversity-and-geological- 
conservation-circular-06-2005 

 
 National Planning Practice Guidance – Natural Environment: 

http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/natural- 

environment 

 
 Oxfordshire Biodiversity and  Planning Guidance: 

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/environment-and-
planning/countryside/natural-environment/environmental-policy-and-
planning/biodiversity-and-planning  
 
 

 Oxfordshire County Council Natural Environment webpage 
 

Page 33

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/7780/150805.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/7780/150805.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/biodiversity-and-geological-conservation-circular-06-2005
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/biodiversity-and-geological-conservation-circular-06-2005
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/biodiversity-and-geological-conservation-circular-06-2005
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/natural-environment
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/natural-environment
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/natural-environment


PN6 
 

 

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/public-site/natural-environment 
 
 Oxfordshire’s Biodiversity Action Plan and Conservation Target Areas 

 
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/oxfordshires-biodiversity-action-plan 
 
•  Geodiversity 

 

http://www.oxfordshiregeologytrust.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2017/03/L_MJurLGAP.pdf 
 
http://www.northwessexdowns.org.uk/uploads/File_Management/Publications/Lan
dscape/NWD_LGAP.pdf 
 

 Oxfordshire Wildlife and Landscape Study (OWLS) 
 
http://owls.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/OWLS/Home/ 

 

 Natural England Standing Advice on Protected Species 
 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/protected-species-how-to-review-planning-
applications  
 

Birdstrike Risk Management Plan 

All applications involving mineral extraction or quarrying, landfill, sewage 
disposal and restoration schemes with major tree planting or nature reserves 
which would be attractive to birds falling within 13 kilometres of Civil Airports 
and Ministry of Defence Airfields will need to be accompanied by details of 
appropriate bird control measures to reduce the risk of birdstrike to aircraft. 
Further guidance is available from the Civil Aviation Authority. 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 
 

National Planning Policy for Waste 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/3 
64759/141015_National_Planning_Policy_for_Waste.pdf 

 
 

Borehole or Trial Pit Analysis 
 
For mineral extraction proposals the analysis should identify: 

 

 

depth and volume of soils and minerals proposed to be 

extracted mineral type 

position of the winter water table 
and include the results of soakage tests. 

 
Daylight/sunlight assessment 

 
Applications that may give rise to adverse impacts on the levels of daylight 
enjoyed by surrounding buildings may need to submit a daylight / sunlight 
assessment. This should include consideration of new features such as tree 
planting from which the impact may take some time to develop. 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 

Page 34

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/public-site/natural-environment
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/oxfordshires-biodiversity-action-plan
http://www.oxfordshiregeologytrust.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/03/L_MJurLGAP.pdf
http://www.oxfordshiregeologytrust.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/03/L_MJurLGAP.pdf
http://www.northwessexdowns.org.uk/uploads/File_Management/Publications/Landscape/NWD_LGAP.pdf
http://www.northwessexdowns.org.uk/uploads/File_Management/Publications/Landscape/NWD_LGAP.pdf
http://owls.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/OWLS/Home/
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/protected-species-how-to-review-planning-applications
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/protected-species-how-to-review-planning-applications
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/364759/141015_National_Planning_Policy_for_Waste.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/364759/141015_National_Planning_Policy_for_Waste.pdf


PN6 
 

British Standard Code of Practice for daylighting, BS8206 Part 2 
 
Proposed/Draft Heads of Terms for Planning obligations 

 
Planning obligations (or Section 106 agreements) are agreements negotiated 
between local planning authorities and persons with an interest in a piece of 
land and are intended to make acceptable development which would otherwise 
be unacceptable in planning terms. 
This could  include brief  draft heads of  terms for an  agreement.  Applicants 
should clarify the County Council‘s potential requirements in pre-application 
discussions and confirm any planning obligations that they might need to meet. 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 

•       The National Planning Policy Framework 2019 paragraphs 203 to 205 
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6 
077/2116950.pdf 

 

• National Planning Practice Guidance – Planning Obligations 
 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/planning-obligations  
 
 
Surface Water Drainage Strategy  
 

Applications involving the creation of new or extended impermeable areas should 
be supported by a drainage strategy which includes: 
 
•           Discharge Rates 
•           Discharge Volumes 
•           Maintenance and management of SUDS features 
•           Sizing of features – attenuation volume 
•           Infiltration in accordance with BRE365 
•           Detailed drainage layout with pipe numbers 
•           Network drainage calculations 
 
Climate change and opportunities to enhance biodiversity should be taken into 
account in the drainage strategy.  
 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 
 
NPPF paragraph 103: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6 
077/2116950.pdf 
 
Non-statutory technical standards for sustainable drainage systems: 
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-drainage-systems-non-
statutory-technical-standards   
 

• Building Regulations Approved Document Part H 
 
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/buildingregulations/approveddocuments/ 
parth/ 

 

Page 35

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/planning-obligations
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-drainage-systems-non-statutory-technical-standards
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-drainage-systems-non-statutory-technical-standards
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/buildingregulations/approveddocuments/parth/
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/buildingregulations/approveddocuments/parth/


PN6 
 

• CIRIA C522 document Sustainable Drainage Systems – design manual 
for England and Wales 

• CIRIA C697 document  - SuDS manual - The Interim Code of Practice for 
Sustainable Drainage Systems 

 
http://www.ciria.org 
 
 
Dust Assessment 

 
Applications which may give rise to dust emissions have the potential to cause 
significant nuisance effects and adverse impacts on human health and sensitive 
ecological sites, habitats or species both during the construction phase and the 
operational phase. This includes dust particles that can be seen and those too 
fine to be seen by the human eye. Applicants will need to assess any adverse 
effects of dust resulting from any development which could generate dust and 
describe the appropriate controls that will be used to mitigate the impact.  
This could be a stand-alone dust risk assessment and consequent dust 
management plan or as part of a wider Air Quality Assessment where there are 
operational phase effects to be considered. 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 
•       The National Planning Policy Framework February 2019 paragraph 205 

 
 
 
• National Planning Policy for Waste, Appendix B 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning- 
policy-for-waste 

 
Flood Risk Assessment 

 
All development should address the potential flood risk from development and 
the need for the Sequential Test. This test is designed to steer development 
away from higher risk Flood Zones and involves considering alternatives for 
development. The Planning Authority determines the Sequential Test and it 
should be discussed at pre- application stage. The Exception Test also needs 
to be passed for certain types and locations of development. 

 
Planning applications for development proposals of 1ha/1,000 m2 of new floor 
space or greater in Flood Zone 1 and all proposals for new development, which 
are located in Flood Zones 2 and 3, or other areas where the Environment 
Agency, Internal Drainage Boards and other bodies have indicated that there 
may be drainage problems, should be accompanied by a Flood Risk 
Assessment. This Assessment should identify and assess the risks of all forms 
of flooding to and from the development and demonstrate how these flood risks 
will be managed taking climate change into account. Modelled flood levels 
(where available) are obtainable from the Environment Agency through a data 
request and maps of flood zones can be viewed on their website 
http://www.environment-agency.gov.uk/. In addition National Planning Practice 
Guidance provides comprehensive guidance in relation to the undertaking of 
the Sequential and Exception Tests, Flood Risk Assessments and the 
responsibilities for controlling development where it may be directly affected by 
flooding or affect flooding elsewhere. 

Page 36

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste
http://www.environment-agency.gov.uk/


PN6 
 

Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 
 

• The National Planning Policy Framework 2019 paragraphs 94, 99 to 
104 

 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6 
077/2116950.pdf 

 
• National Planning Practice Guidance – Flood Risk 

 
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-and- 
coastal-change/ 

 

• National Planning Policy for Waste, Appendix B 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste 

• District Council Strategic Flood Risk Assessments 

http://www.cherwell.gov.uk/index.cfm?articleid=4356 
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and- 
building/planning-policy/evidence-studies/district-flood-risk 

 
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and- 
building/planning-policy/new-local-plan-2029/evidence-base/strategi 

 
• Oxfordshire County Council Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment 

 
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/oxfordshire-preliminary-flood-risk- 
assessment-pfra 

 
•  Oxfordshire County Council Local Flood Risk Management Strategy 

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/oxfordshire-local-flood-risk-
management-strategy  

 

• Oxfordshire County Council Flood Toolkit 

 

https://www.oxfordshirefloodtoolkit.com/planning/  

 

• Building Regulations Approved Document Part H 
 
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/buildingregulations/approveddocuments/ 
parth/ 

 

• CIRIA C522 document Sustainable Drainage Systems – design manual 
for England and Wales 

• CIRIA C624 document – Guidance for FRAs 
• CIRIA C697 document  - SuDS manual - The Interim Code of Practice for 

Sustainable Drainage Systems 
 
http://www.ciria.org 

 

 
Foul Sewage and Utilities Statement 

 
If an application proposes to connect a development to the existing drainage 

Page 37

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-and-
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-and-
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/flood-risk-and-coastal-change/
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste
http://www.cherwell.gov.uk/index.cfm?articleid=4356
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/evidence-studies/district-flood-risk
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/evidence-studies/district-flood-risk
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/evidence-studies/district-flood-risk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/new-local-plan-2029/evidence-base/strategi
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/new-local-plan-2029/evidence-base/strategi
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/services-and-advice/planning-and-building/planning-policy/new-local-plan-2029/evidence-base/strategi
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/oxfordshire-preliminary-flood-risk-assessment-pfra
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/oxfordshire-preliminary-flood-risk-assessment-pfra
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/oxfordshire-preliminary-flood-risk-assessment-pfra
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/oxfordshire-local-flood-risk-management-strategy
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/oxfordshire-local-flood-risk-management-strategy
https://www.oxfordshirefloodtoolkit.com/planning/
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/buildingregulations/approveddocuments/parth/
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/buildingregulations/approveddocuments/parth/


PN6 
 

system then details of the existing system should be shown on the application 
drawing(s). It should be noted that in most circumstances surface water is not 
permitted to be connected to the public foul sewers. Where the development 
involves the disposal of trade waste or the disposal of foul sewage effluent 
other than to the public sewer, then a fuller foul drainage assessment will be 
required including details of the method of storage, treatment and disposal. A 
foul drainage assessment should include a full assessment of the site, its 
location and suitability for storing, transporting and treating sewage. Where 
connection  to  the  mains  sewer  is  not  practical,  then  the  foul/non-mains 
drainage assessment will be required to demonstrate why the development 
cannot connect to the public mains sewer system and show that the alternative 
means of disposal are satisfactory. Guidance on what should be included in a 
non-mains  drainage  assessment  is  given  in  DETR  Circular  03/99  and 
Building Regulations Approved Document Part H and in BS6297. 
Applicants should discuss the specific details required with the relevant utility 
provider. 

 
If the proposed development results in any changes/replacement to the existing 
system or the creation of a new system, scale plans of the new foul drainage 
arrangements will also need to be provided. This will include a location plan, 
cross sections/elevations and specification. Drainage details that will achieve 
Building Regulations Approval will be required. If connection to any of the 
above requires crossing land that is not in the applicant‘s ownership, other than 
on a public highway, then notice may need to be served on the owners of that 
land. 

 
An application should indicate how the development connects to existing utility 
infrastructure systems. Most new development requires connection to existing 
utility services, including electricity and gas supplies, telecommunications and 
water supply, and also needs connection to foul and surface water drainage 
and disposal. Two planning issues arise; firstly, whether the existing services 
and infrastructure have sufficient capacity to accommodate the supply/service 
demands which would arise from the completed development, and secondly, 
whether the provision of services on site would give rise to any environmental 
impacts, for example, excavations in the vicinity of trees or archaeological 
remains. 

 
The applicant should demonstrate that :- 
(a) following consultation with the service provider, the availability of utility 

services has been examined and that the proposals would not result in 
undue stress on the delivery of those services to the wider community. 
Written confirmation of this from the service provider should accompany 
any application; 

(b) proposals incorporate any utility company requirements for substations, 
telecommunications equipment or similar structures; 

(c) service routes have been planned to avoid the potential for damage to 
trees and archaeological remains; and 

(d) where the development impinges on existing infrastructure the provisions 
for relocating or protecting that infrastructure have been agreed with the 
service provider and written confirmation of this from the service provider 
is submitted. 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 
• National Planning Practice Guidance - Water supply, wastewater and 

Page 38



PN6 
 

water quality 
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/water-supply- 

wastewater-and-water-quality/ 
 

 

 Approved Document H – Drainage and Waste Disposal 2015 edition 
 
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/buildingregulations/approveddocuments/ 
parth/approved 

 
Green Belt Statement 

 
For applications in the Oxford Green Belt,  where a development is inappropriate 
within the Green Belt, a statement will be required including an explanation of 
how the proposal relates to the purposes of including the site within the Green 
Belt, how the development impacts on the openness of the Green Belt and the 
case for any very special circumstances. Planning applications for extensions to 
buildings or replacement buildings in the Oxford Green Belt need to include 
volume calculations (measured externally) of the existing building, the proposed 
extension/replacement building and any previous extensions to the building. 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 

•       The National Planning Policy Framework 2019 paragraphs 133 to 147 
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6 
077/2116950.pdf 

 
Heritage and Archaeological Statements 

 
For developments affecting the historic environment (Listed Buildings, 
Conservation Areas, Scheduled Ancient Monuments, Historic Parks and 
Gardens, World Heritage Sites (Blenheim Palace) other areas of possible 
archaeological interest) a Heritage and/or Archaeological Statement may be 
required. The scope and degree of detail necessary in a Heritage and 
Archaeological Statement will vary according to the particular circumstances of 
each application. Applicants are advised to discuss proposals with the County 
Council’s Historic Environment team before any application is made. The 
following is a guide to the sort of information that may be required for different 
types of application. 

 
In the case of designated sites/structures, applicants should be aware of the 
need for the appropriate consent (Listed Building Consent, Conservation Area 
Consent or Scheduled Monument Consent) in addition to planning permission. 
Advice on the need for Listed Building and Conservation Area consent should 
be sought from the relevant District Council. Advice on the need for Scheduled 
Monument Consent should be sought from Historic England. 

 
For both designated and undesignated sites, buildings and structures the 
following  types  of  assessment  may  be  required.  Further  advice  should  be 
sought from the County Council’s Historic Environment team. 

 
Desk-based assessment: This will comprise the collation of existing 

archaeological and historic information about the application site and the 

production of a report summarising this material. An assessment of the impact 

of the proposed development on the archaeological site, historic building or 

Page 39

http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/water-supply-wastewater-and-water-quality/
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/water-supply-wastewater-and-water-quality/
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/water-supply-wastewater-and-water-quality/
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/buildingregulations/approveddocuments/parth/approved
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/buildingregulations/approveddocuments/parth/approved
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf


PN6 
 

other aspects of the historic environment may be required. It should be carried 

out in accordance with the Chartered Institute for Archaeologists standards and 

guidance for desk-based assessments including the submission of an appropriate 

written scheme of investigation to agree the scope of the assessment. 

 
Field evaluation: More detailed investigation of the site or building may be 
required to complete the assessment of the impact of the proposed 
development. This is likely to involve on-site investigation such as geophysical 
survey and the excavation of test pits or trenches. This work must be discussed 
with the County Council’s Historic Environment team in advance and carried out 
in accordance with the Chartered Institute for Archaeologists standards and 
guidance for archaeological evaluation including the submission and 
agreement of a written scheme of investigation.  
 
Where pre-development archaeological investigations are required, these should 
be informed by appropriate prior ecological survey to ensure that biodiversity is 
not harmed; including details of any mitigation, compensation and subsequent 
management of biodiversity interest. 

 
For applications adjacent to a listed building or within or adjacent to a 
conservation area which may affect its setting, an assessment of the impact of 
the development on the character and appearance of the area may be required. 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 

•       The National Planning Policy Framework February 2019  paragraphs 
184 to 202  

 
•           National Planning Policy for Waste, Appendix B 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste 

 

 
 

Hydrological Assessment 
 
Where dewatering of mineral workings is proposed, applicants are strongly 
advised  to  consult  the  Environment  Agency     and  the  County  Council’s 
Drainage Engineer at an early stage and to involve a qualified Hydrogeologist. 
Technical information, including the calculation of the extent and volumes of 
dewatering will be required in order for the Agency and the County Council to 
assess further investigations. This may include monitoring of the existing water 
regime for at least 12 months prior to submission of the application in order to 
ensure that surface and ground water can be safeguarded. The potential 
impacts on biodiversity should also be considered. 

 
Applicants should indicate the natural water table including its depth, source 
catchment areas and characteristics. The statement must show that third 
parties will not be affected by the dewatering. Where investigations show that 
dewatering will have an impact on public and private water supplies or water 
bodies or watercourses details of mitigating measures must be included in the 
application e.g. recharging reservoirs etc. 

 
Details of proposed methods of dewatering and proposed methods of water 
disposal must be given.  Applicants should include proposed measures to 
control potential pollution to protect ground and surface water. They should 

Page 40

http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste


PN6 
 

also give an indication of any necessary drainage and flood control measures; 
and proposed monitoring measures, including any requirements for the 
provision of settlement lagoons; the way in which surface water is to be 
disposed of; the avoidance of impairing drainage from adjoining areas; and 
the prevention of material entering open watercourses. 

 
NB - All works which affect non-main rivers require approval and licensing by 

the relevant Councils:- 

West Oxfordshire District Council 
South Oxfordshire District Council 
Vale of White Horse District Council 
Oxford City Council 
Oxfordshire County Council (covering Cherwell District Council). 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 

• The National Planning Policy Framework February 2019  paragraph 205 

•           National Planning Policy for Waste, Appendix B 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste 

 

 

Land Contamination Assessment 
 

 

Applications affecting land which is thought to possibly be contaminated through 
earlier development, may need to be accompanied by a land contamination 
assessment that should include an extended assessment of contamination. 
Sufficient information is required to determine the existence or otherwise of 
contamination, its nature and the risks it may pose and whether these can be 
satisfactorily reduced to an acceptable level. 

 
Where contamination is known or suspected or the proposed use would be 
particularly vulnerable (such as schools or near public water supplies), the 
applicant should provide such information, in the form of a preliminary risk 
assessment, with the application as is necessary to determine whether the 
proposed development can proceed. The preliminary risk assessment should 
comprise the following: 

A desk study; 

Walkover site reconnaissance; 

Conceptual model identifying potential pollution sources, pathways and 
receptors (pollutant linkages) as a basis for assessing the risks and 
appraising the options for remediation. 

 
Applications involving development of sites on or within 250 metres of a former 
landfill site will need to include a risk assessment of landfill gas migration. In 
addition, long-term monitoring may be required, and this would need to be 
secured through a legal agreement. 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 

•     The National Planning Policy Framework February 2019  paragraphs 178 
– 180.  

 
 

 
 

• Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination – 

Page 41

http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste


PN6 
 

Contaminated Land Report 11 

http://www.environment-agency.gov.uk/research/planning/33740.aspx 
 

 
 

Landfill and Mining Waste Applications 
 
For applications including landfill and/or mining waste, sufficient information 
should be provided to enable the County Planning Authority to fulfil its 
requirements under the Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2011. This 
information may be provided as part of the Supporting Planning Statement or 
Environmental Statement. 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 
•       The Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2011 

 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2011/9780111506462/contents 

 

Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment 
 
Landscape is defined in accordance with the European Landscape Convention 
(2000), as “an area, as perceived by people, whose character is the result of the 
action and interaction of natural and/or human factors’. This includes both urban 
‘townscapes’ and rural landscapes.  
 
An LVIA will be required for major developments that are considered to be EIA 
developments or which have the potential to cause significant landscape and 
visual impacts. 
 
As a general rule a Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) will be 
required for developments that are within an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
(AONB), within the setting of an AONB, or within any other protected or sensitive 
landscape area designated in a County Council assessment, District Council 
Core Strategy, Local or Neighbourhood Plan. Major developments outside a 
designated area might also require a LVIA depending on their scale, nature, 
location and envisaged impacts. 
 
 
 
The LVIA should be produced in accordance with the Landscape Institute and 
the Institute of Environmental Management & Assessment Guidelines for 
Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (third edition) and should include: 

 Detailed project description / specification including transport routes and 

information on lighting (if applicable); 

 Assessment methodology – issues of susceptibility, value, sensitivity, 

magnitude of effects, significance of effects together with a transparent step by 

step approach on how effects have been assessed.  

 Separate assessment of landscape effects and visual effects. 

 Baseline landscape and visual conditions 

o Landscape baseline   

This should not only include a desk-based review of the existing local 

landscape character assessments but should identify key characteristic 

elements and features of the site and its context.  

Page 42

http://www.environment-agency.gov.uk/research/planning/33740.aspx
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2011/9780111506462/contents


PN6 
 

o Visual baseline   

Definition of the Zone of Theoretical Visibility (ZTV), identification of visual 

receptors, selection of representative viewpoints, photographs from 

representative viewpoints including the extent of the site together with 

some explanation of how this view would be impacted upon.  

 Assessment of landscape and visual effects (including lighting) for different 

stages of the project, i.e. construction, operation and restoration.   

 Assessing the significance of landscape and visual effects (where applicable) 

 Information on mitigation / prevention / avoidance and residual effects 

 Photomontages or wireframe images for selected viewpoints (where 

appropriate) for different stages of the development, typically ‘Existing View’, 

‘Development/operation - Day One’, ‘Development - Year 15’ (ie after 

restoration) 

 Assessment of cumulative effects (where applicable) 

 

It is recommended that representative viewpoints and the requirement of 

photomontages / wireframe images are agreed with the County Council during the 

preparation of the LVIA. 

 
 
 
 
 
Small-scale developments that due to their scale, nature and location are 

unlikely to cause major landscape and/or visual impacts might not be required to 

carry out a full LVIA but another form of assessment such as a Landscape 

Appraisal. The level of assessment will need to be determined on a case by 

case basis and applicants are encouraged to seek pre-application advice on 

this. 

 

Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 
 

•       The National Planning Policy Framework 2019 paragraphs 127, 170, 
172, 180,  

 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6 
077/2116950.pdf 

 
• National Planning Policy for Waste, Appendix B 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste 

 

 
 

• Guidelines for Landscape and  Visual  Impact  Assessment, 3rd Edition ( 
2013)  –  The 

Landscape Institute and Institute for Environmental Management and 
Assessment 

Page 43

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste


PN6 
 

https://www.landscapeinstitute.org/technical-resource/landscape-visual-
impact-assessment/# 

 

 Guidelines for Visualization of development  

https://www.landscapeinstitute.org/visualisation/  

 
 

 Oxfordshire Wildlife and Landscape Study 2004 (OWLS)   
 

http://owls.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/OWLS/Home/ 

 
This should be read in conjunction with any relevant District or local level 
landscape character assessments, management plans and position 
statements 

 

 The Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty Management Plan 
http://www.chilternsaonb.org/conservation-board/management-
plan.html 

 

 The Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty Management 
Plan 

 

https://www.cotswoldsaonb.org.uk/planning/cotswolds-aonb-management-

plan/ 
 

 The  North  Wessex  Downs  Area  of  Outstanding  Natural  Beauty 
Management Plan 

 
http://www.northwessexdowns.org.uk/About-Us/aonb-

management- plan.html  
 

 
 

Landscaping Scheme 
 
The impact a proposal has on the locality is an important consideration for the 
County Council when determining planning applications. Unless otherwise 
indicated by the County Council, applications are to be accompanied by 
landscaping details and include proposals for long-term maintenance and 
landscape management. It will assist your proposal greatly if the 
L a n d s c a p i n g  Scheme is clear and specific, and makes reference to 
suitable methods of ameliorating any potential negative impacts. 

 
Landscaping schemes should include the following: 

 
(a) proposed finished ground levels or contours; drainage details; means of 

enclosure; car parking layouts; other vehicle and pedestrian access and 
circulation areas, hard surfacing materials, structures and ancillary objects 
(refuse bins, lighting columns etc) and landscape context; 

(b) planting plans; written  specifications  (including  cultivation  and  other 
operations associated with plant and grass establishment); vegetation to 
be retained, proposed planting, schedules of plants,  noting  species,  
plant   sizes  and  proposed   numbers/planting densities where 
appropriate; 

(c) existing vegetation to be retained together with measures for its 

Page 44

https://www.landscapeinstitute.org/technical-resource/landscape-visual-impact-assessment/
https://www.landscapeinstitute.org/technical-resource/landscape-visual-impact-assessment/
https://www.landscapeinstitute.org/visualisation/
http://owls.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/OWLS/Home/
http://www.chilternsaonb.org/conservation-board/management-plan.html
http://www.chilternsaonb.org/conservation-board/management-plan.html
https://www.cotswoldsaonb.org.uk/planning/cotswolds-aonb-management-plan/
https://www.cotswoldsaonb.org.uk/planning/cotswolds-aonb-management-plan/
http://www.northwessexdowns.org.uk/About-Us/aonb-management-
http://www.northwessexdowns.org.uk/About-Us/aonb-management-
http://www.northwessexdowns.org.uk/About-Us/aonb-management-plan.html


PN6 
 

protection during the course of construction.  
 

d)  
e) An indicative Landscaping Plan;  
f) Information with regard to the long-term maintenance and management; 

Applications for full planning permission (apart from change of use) should 
preferably be accompanied by a fully detailed scheme, as above; there is a 
minimum requirement for proposals to indicate the intended landscape 
structure, which should be cross-referenced with the  Design  and  Access  
statement  (if  one  is required); 
 

It may be necessary to provide full details of the proposed landscaping 

scheme at the time of submission (species to be planted, numbers, spacings, 

size, seeding mix etc) although in appropriate cases these details could be 

required under the terms of a condition of a planning permission. 

 
The Landscape Scheme should also explain the contribution that it makes to 
biodiversity and green infrastructure and the practicalities of long-term 
management. 
 
BS 3936-1:1992 Nursery stock. Specification for trees and shrubs is a key 
reference for the specification of trees and shrubs for use in landscaping 
schemes.   
BS 8545:2014 Trees: from nursery to independence in the landscape – 
Recommendations is a useful reference for the creation of successful planting 
schemes. 
 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 

• The National Planning Policy Framework 2019 paragraphs 170, 172 and 
173 

 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6 
077/2116950.pdf 

 
•           National Planning Policy for Waste, Appendix B 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste 

 
Lawful Development Certificate Supporting Information 

 
These are certificates of lawfulness for either a proposed use or 
operation/development or an existing use or operation/development. This type 
of application can also be one where condition(s) on a planning consent have 
not been complied with and you are wishing to regularise the situation.  The 
burden of proof is firmly with the applicant, and therefore sufficient and precise 
information should be provided. We will need information specifying the land 
in question, describing the use, operations or other matter in question and 
stating under which paragraph of either section 191(1) or 192(1) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 the application is being made. 

 
You will need to provide evidence to support your application so that, in the 
balance of probabilities, your application can be proven. It is important that 
you collate as much evidence as possible to support your application, and 

Page 45

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste


PN6 
 

copies of any documents; affidavits etc. can be useful in such cases.  You will 
need to tell us about the use of the land at the time of the application (or, 
when the land is not in use at the date, the purpose for which it was last 
used). You will need to provide a statement detailing your interest in the land, 
the name and address of any other person known to you to have an interest 
in the land and whether you have notified any such person. If your application 
relates to a certificate of lawfulness of an existing operation or use, you will 
need to tell us the date on which the use, operations or other matter in 
question began or, in the case of operations carried out without planning 
permission, the date on which operations were substantially completed. If 
your application is for a use or operation which has not yet commenced, you 
will need to give reasons for why you believe the use or operation as 
described in the application is lawful and should be granted a certificate.  In 
the case of applying where a development has taken place without complying 
with any condition or limitation, you will need to provide sufficient 
details/evidence to support your claim. 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/8/contents 
 
Outdoor Lighting Scheme (including a light pollution assessment)  
 
Where external lighting would be provided or made necessary by a development, 
it should be accompanied by details of external lighting, including the proposed 
hours when the lighting would be switched on.  
 
The applicant will need to ensure they have taken all measures to ensure to direct 
light downwards within the boundaries of the site. The luminaires that are 
proposed should have a horizontal cut-off which acts to minimise light spillage 
upwards.  
 
These details provided should include the type of lighting (manufacturer), the light 
source (i.e. high pressure sodium; metal Halide, LED’s), the colour temperature 
(in Kelvin), details of the lantern mounting height above ground and the power 
rating of the fittings, the proposed hours of use of the lighting (including the means 
of control over the hours of illumination), beam angles, drawings/lighting 
calculations to demonstrate the spread of the light and the means of ensuring that 
the light does not extend beyond the site to the detriment of the amenity. The 
fundamental aspect of the lighting scheme is to illuminate the specific area and to 
minimise light spill into the surrounding environment so as to not create 
unacceptable disturbance on neighbouring properties or undue glare onto the 
surrounding road network.  
 
N.B Notwithstanding this, should any future issue arise from complaints, the 
Highway Authority is able to request shields or baffles to be fitted at the 
developer/owners expense and/or the geometry of the light pattern to be altered to 
further control the direction of light emitted and reduce the impact within the 
surrounding area. 
 
The assessment of potential impact should include the impact on any sensitive 
biodiversity feature, landscape and dark-skies where relevant. Areas of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) including their setting are considered 
particularly sensitive to light pollution.  

Page 46

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/8/contents


PN6 
 

 
Additional related guidance:  
 
Guidance for the reduction of obtrusive light:  

https://www.theilp.org.uk/documents/obtrusive-light/ 
 

https://www.theilp.org.uk/documents/a-review-of-the-impact-of-artificial-
light-on-invertebrates/ 
 

https://www.theilp.org.uk/documents/guidance-note-8-bats-and-artificial-
lighting/ 

 

 NightBlight mapping by the Campaign to Protect Rural England (CPRE): 
 
https://www.nightblight.cpre.org.uk/index.php  

 

 Cotwolds Dark Skies & Artificial Light Position Statement (March 2019) 
 
https://www.cotswoldsaonb.org.uk/our-landscape/position-statements-2/ 
 
 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 

•       The National Planning Policy Framework February 2019 paragraphs 
172, 180 

 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6 
077/2116950.pdf 

 
•           National Planning Policy for Waste, Appendix B 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste 
 
 

 

 
 

Noise impact assessment 
 
Application proposals that raise issues of disturbance to the locality due to the 
noise they will generate, including to wildlife, or are considered to be a noise 
sensitive developments that need protection themselves, should be supported 
by a Noise Impact Assessment prepared by a suitably qualified acoustician. 
The statement should normally include the existing ambient noise climate and 
a  survey  of  both  pedestrian  and  vehicular  numbers  in  and  around  the 
premises; assessment of the existing and future noise climate due to the 
proposed development, indicating any increase in predicted noise levels; 
assessment of the existing and predicted number of events and their size and 
scale and finally details of management procedures to reduce the impact of the 
premises‘ operation on the locality, including noise from incoming and outgoing 
vehicles. Developments that may require sound insulation of a building to 
contain the noise generated within it need to be accompanied by these details. 
Proper sound insulation can assist to minimise the disturbance experienced by 
other properties in the area of a proposal. Where development generates no 
significant noise a technical statement is not required but a statement to that 
effect in the application‘s supporting statement may provide sufficient 
assessment. 

Page 47

https://www.theilp.org.uk/documents/obtrusive-light/
https://www.theilp.org.uk/documents/a-review-of-the-impact-of-artificial-light-on-invertebrates/
https://www.theilp.org.uk/documents/a-review-of-the-impact-of-artificial-light-on-invertebrates/
https://www.theilp.org.uk/documents/guidance-note-8-bats-and-artificial-lighting/
https://www.theilp.org.uk/documents/guidance-note-8-bats-and-artificial-lighting/
https://www.nightblight.cpre.org.uk/index.php
https://www.cotswoldsaonb.org.uk/our-landscape/position-statements-2/
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste


PN6 
 

 
This should include consideration of tranquility where relevant. This may be in 
association with the landscape assessment. 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 

•       The National Planning Policy Framework February 2019 paragraphs 
170, 180, 205  

 
 

• National Planning Practice Guidance 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/noise--2  

 

• National Planning Policy for Waste, Appendix B 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste 
 
 
 
 
Open Space/playing field assessment 

 
For development within open spaces or which may result in the loss of an 
existing playing field, application proposals must be accompanied by plans 
showing any areas of existing or proposed open space or playing field land 
within or adjoining the application site. In the absence of a robust and up-to- 
date assessment by a local authority, an applicant may seek to demonstrate 
through an independent assessment that the land or buildings are surplus to 
local requirements and any such evidence, including a needs assessment, 
must accompany the planning application. Developers will need to consult the 
local community to demonstrate that their proposals are widely supported by 
them. Where there would be a loss of playing field, Sport England must be 
consulted. 

 
Where there is a loss of a playing field details should be provided of the area 
in hectares of playing field to be lost and area in hectares of replacement 
playing field land. Plans should be provided to show the locations of these 
areas. Where replacement playing field provision is proposed details should be 
provided to compare the quality, accessibility to users and management 
arrangements. 

 
In respect of a justification to demonstrate that a proposed new playing field 
facility will be of sufficient benefit to the development of sport as to outweigh 
the loss of an existing playing field, the following information is likely to be 
required; 
-How the development fits with any existing playing field or school sports 
provision plan 
- Details of existing and proposed management, maintenance and funding of 
sports facilities 
- Details of any community use 
- Technical details including surfacing, fencing, floodlighting and access 
- Details of the proposed sports to be played on the new facility and the level 
to which they would be played 

 

 
 

Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 
 

•       The National Planning Policy Framework February 2019 paragraphs 96, 
97  

Page 48

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/noise--2
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste


PN6 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6 
077/2116950.pdf 

 
Parking Provision 

 
Most applications will be required to provide details of existing and proposed 
parking provision and access arrangements.  These details can be shown on 
the site plan. An assessment of the parking requirements of the proposal and 
how that provision would be accommodated should be provided. The plan 
should, where necessary, provide details of the existing parking provision and 
how  the  requirements  of  the  new  development  relate  to  it. Temporary 
arrangements during  construction  for  construction  workers  and  materials 
delivery and storage should also be considered, especially in residential areas 
where car parking is limited. 

 

Parking details should include the location of proposed car, cycle, scooter and 
disabled parking to be provided on site. 

 

For minerals and waste sites, the parking details should separately show the 
location of operational parking, staff parking and visitor parking.  

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 

•       The National Planning Policy Framework February 2019  paragraphs 105 
and 106  

 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6 
077/2116950.pdf 

 

Photographs and Photomontages 
 
These can provide useful background information and can help to show how 
large developments can be satisfactorily integrated within the landscape or 
street scene. To provide context to a proposal photomontages can be useful 
for larger applications such as for new school buildings, major mineral or waste 
developments including landscaping to demonstrate the appearance of a 
building or area in its current state and photomontages to demonstrate the 
change. For example, this method could demonstrate the form of a quarry 
restoration   scheme  and   how  it   would   assimilate   into   the   surrounding 
landscape. Computer generated images may also be helpful. 

 
Rights of Way 

 
Where a public right of way is affected by proposed development, even 
temporarily during construction phases, advice should be sought from the 
County Council’s Rights of Way officer as soon as possible to ensure 
appropriate procedure for stopping up or diversion of the right of way are 
followed and what alternative arrangements can be made.  The route of all 
rights of way should be shown on drawings. 
 
Rights of Way in Oxfordshire can be viewed on the website: 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/countrysidemap/  
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/definitive-map-and-statement-
online  

Page 49

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/countrysidemap/
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/definitive-map-and-statement-online
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/definitive-map-and-statement-online


PN6 
 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 

•       The National Planning Policy Framework February 2019 paragraph 
98 

 
 

 
Statement of Community Involvement 

 

 

All applications set out in the table below should be supported by a statement 
setting out how the applicant has complied with the requirements for pre- 
application consultation set out in the County Council’s adopted statement of 
community involvement and demonstrating that the views of the local 
community have been sought and taken into account in the formulation of 
development proposals. 

 
 

Waste Applications • Applications for disposal of 
degradable wastes with a 
capacity of 500,000 tonnes or 
more and/or a disposal life of 10 
years or more; 

Page 50



PN6 
 

 

 • Applications for a waste 
processing plant having a 
throughput of 100,000 tpa or 
more; 
• Applications for the disposal to 
land of air pollution control 
residues (APCRs) from the 
incineration of waste for periods 
in excess of five years; 
• Applications for new 
developments; 

Mineral Applications • Application for a new quarry ; 
• Applications for extensions of 
existing quarries of 25 hectares 
and/or with a production 
capacity of 250,000 tpa or more; 

Other Applications • School or other education 
establishment with six classes 
per year group on a greenfield 
site and with significant 
transport implications; 
• Road proposal with a length of 
2km or more in an urban 
environment or a length of 5km 
or more in a rural environment 
and all bypasses. 

 
 

Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 
 

• The National Planning Policy Framework February 2019 paragraphs 39 -46  
 
 

• The Revised Oxfordshire Statement of Community Involvement 2019 – 
 
Xx Link to be provided following publication 
 

 
 
Supporting Planning Statement 

 
All full planning applications for new development should be accompanied by a 
Supporting Planning Statement. Information will include additional detail to that 
set out in the application form and any additional supporting information 
including  an  assessment  of  how  the  proposed  development  accords  with 
policies in the development plan, supplementary planning document(s), 
masterplans or development briefs, national policy and guidance and any other 
technical guidance which may be of relevance. Justification for any departure 
from policy should be provided, including very special circumstances for the 
development if it is contrary to Green Belt policies must be provided. 
. 
Unless otherwise more appropriately provided separately as a requirement of 

Page 51



PN6 
 

this List of validation requirements, for mineral and waste management 
applications, the supporting planning statement should also include: 

 
          Description of the site including any designations; 
 Planning   history   including   relevant   planning   permission   reference 

numbers; 
 Reason for the location proposed and what other options and/or locations 

were considered; 
          The type of mineral(s) to be extracted; 
          Quantities in tonnes of mineral(s) to be extracted; 
          Maximum depth of extraction; 
 The  projected  source  and  type  of  waste  including  the  percentage  by 

geographical area; 
          How the waste will be treated/handled; 
          Capacity of the site; 
 Quantity of waste to be disposed of/treated/handled in both tonnes and 

cubic metres; 
 Any ancillary operations for the process of recycling, recovery or pre- 

treatment of the waste on site; 
          Proposed hours of operation; 
          Proposed maximum daily vehicle movements; 
          Details of all plant and equipment; 
          Details of external lighting; 
          Site preparation work details; 
          Method of working; 
          Timescale of the development; 
          Soil handling strategy details; 
          Proposals for managing dust and litter; 
          Predicted noise levels and measures to be taken for their control; 
          Proposals for preventing the deposit of mud and debris on the highway; 
          Proposals for controlling vermin and birds; 
 Existing,    pre-settlement    and    post-settlement    levels    for    mineral 

extraction/landfill/land-raising sites including depths/heights; 
 Proposals for controlling landfill gas and leachate at landfill sites including 

details of gas flaring and power generation; 
          An assessment of likely odour issues and measures to control odour; 
 A phasing programme  of extraction, waste disposal and restoration in the 

case of mineral extraction and landfill sites; 
          Details of surface water management measures; 
          Information with regard to existing and projected staff and visitor numbers; 
          Existing and proposed parking arrangements; 
 Details of impacts to the amenity of local residents and those using the site 

and adjacent area and any roads or other transport corridors to be used to 
serve the site and the measures to be taken if necessary to ameliorate 
them including the provision of buffer zones; 

 Restoration  and  aftercare  proposals  including  details  of  the  financial 
provision to be made for this. 

 
For non-mineral and waste developments, the supporting planning statement 
should include: 

          Description of the site including any designations; 
 Planning   history   including   relevant   planning   permission   reference 

numbers; 
 Reason for the location proposed and what other options and/or locations 

Page 52



PN6 
 

were considered; 
 Information  with  regard  to  existing  and  projected  pupil  numbers  for 

education developments; 
          Information with regard to existing and projected staff and visitor numbers; 
          Existing and proposed parking arrangements; 
 Details of impacts to the amenity of local residents and those using the site 

and adjacent area and any roads or other transport corridors to be used to 
serve the site and the measures to be taken if necessary to ameliorate 
them; 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 

National Planning Practice Guidance - Validation Requirements 

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/making-an-application  
 
Sustainability Statement 

 
A sustainability statement will be required for all operational developments, 
detailing and demonstrating how energy minimisation and carbon dioxide 
reduction will be incorporated into the development.   The statement should 
also show how the development will be adapted to severe weather events. 

 
All non-domestic built  development  will  be  encouraged  to  achieve  Building 
Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Method (BREEAM) rating 
‘Very Good‘ as a minimum standard and also obtain an award under the Civil 
Engineering Environmental Quality  Assessment and Award Scheme 
(CEEQUAL).  BREEAM for buildings sets the standard for best practice in 
sustainable design and has become the de facto measure used to describe a 
building's environmental performance. Standards  have  been  developed  for 
the most popular building types e.g. offices, retail developments, education, 
healthcare buildings etc. BREEAM assessment is a funding requirement for 
major new school and refurbishment projects. CEEQUAL is the assessment 
and  award  scheme for improving  sustainability in  civil  engineering and  the 
public realm.  CEEQUAL is applicable to development schemes for waste water 
treatment,  waste  transfer  and  recycling  facilities,  sports  stadia,  roads  and 
bridges that would be determined by the County Council usually valued at over 
£1 million. The scheme assesses performance across 12 areas of 
environmental and social concern, rewarding designers and constructors which 
go beyond the legal and environmental minima to achieve environmental and 
social standards. 

 
The sustainability appraisal must outline the elements of the scheme that 
address the full range of sustainable development issues.  This should include 
an assessment of the following: 

       Water use – particularly where water scarcity is a recognized issue locally, 
and for major development involving surface or groundwater abstraction; 

        Energy efficiency and generation – A statement should specify what the 
predicted energy demand is  for  the  development,  explain  how  the 

Development would meet current energy efficiency standards and 
maximise the use of sustainable/renewable sources, for example CHP 
and local heat networks, photovoltaic panels, biomass and air/ground 

source heating, aiming to reduce CO2  emissions. The statement should 
also consider the options for energy collaboration with adjoining sites – 

Page 53

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/making-an-application


PN6 
 

particularly if a heat network is appropriate; 

        Sustainable construction – utilising recycled and locally-sourced, building 
and landscaping materials, details of the origin of natural materials to be 
used in construction should be provided; 

 Waste management – promoting resource efficiency; 

 Adapting  to  severe  weather  events,  not  dealt  with  elsewhere, for 

example heat waves and locally intense rain storms. 

•  Assessment of the effects on green infrastructure, for example including 

the effects on the provision of accessible natural green space, the role of 

sustainable drainage systems, the incorporation of green features in built 

design, and the role of green infrastructure in mitigating and adapting to 

future climate change.    

 

 
 

Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 
 

• The National Planning Policy Framework February 2019  paragraphs 131, 
149-154  

 
 
 
CEEQUAL website: https://www.ceequal.com   
BREEAM website: http://www.breeam.org 

 

Transport Statement/Assessment 
 

 

Where developments (during and after their construction) will have transport 
implications, Transport Statements/Assessments should be prepared.  
 
The coverage and detail of the Transport Statement/Assessment should reflect 
the scale of development and the extent of the transport implications of the 
proposal.  
 
For small schemes, the Transport Statement should simply outline the 
transport aspects of the application,  including parking provision.  
 
For larger scale proposals, where there is the potential for a high number of 
vehicle movements or an impact on sensitive areas on the local highway 
network, a Transport Assessment should be provided. This must demonstrate 
how the traffic impact will be mitigated and managed and illustrate accessibility 
to the site by all modes and the likely split of types of journey to and from 
the site. It should also give details of proposed measures to improve access 
by public transport, walking and cycling, to reduce the need for parking 
associated with the proposal and to mitigate transport impacts. These 
assessments enable local planning authorities better to assess the application 
and provide a basis for discussion on details of the scheme, such as the level 
of parking, the siting of buildings and entrances, and the need for further 
measures to improve access arrangements to the site. Details of any firm 
proposals to improve the access to a site (particularly where included in the 
local transport plan) should be provided and show adequate visibility splays 
for the highest average 85th percentile speed of the major road and be designed 
given due consideration to the location of the proposed development, speed of 
the road and the character of area. Details of proposals for access/egress and 

Page 54

https://www.ceequal.com/
http://www.breeam.org/


PN6 
 

the management of construction traffic should be provided.  
 
Transport Statement / Transport Assessments should show how the proposed 
development can be accessed by alternatives to single occupant car use, for 
example walking, cycling and the use of public transport.  
 
Vehicle swept path analysis should be provided to show how large vehicles 
would enter, move around and exit the site. For built development this should 
include details for refuse vehicles and delivery vehicles visiting the site, where 
it would not be safe for these to dwell on the highway. It should be shown how 
vehicles would access and egress the site in a forward gear and turn around 
within the site. 
 
Typical vehicle dimensions for swept path analysis: 
 
- Delivery Vehicle – 7.5 tonne box van 8.0 metres in length 
- Minerals and waste vehicles - 8 wheeled rigid tipper lorry (9.6 metres in 

length) , articulated tipper (14.2 metres in length), skip loader 7.8 metres 
(length) x 2.5 metres  (width) 

- Refuse collection vehicle – 11.6m length, 2.6m wide, 3.2m high, 2.5m track 
width 

 
Routeing - Where there are a high number of large goods vehicle movements 
predicted from a proposed waste and minerals site a suitable route for large 
goods vehicles to the nearest strategic highway will need to be mapped by the 
applicant using the Oxfordshire Freight Gateway mapping tool: 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/oxfordshire-freight-gateway  
 
A routeing agreement may be required to secure compliance with proposed 
routes.  
 
Details of proposals for wheel washing facilities should be provided for sites 
which would have the potential to cause mud or dust to be deposited on the 
public highway. Suitable means of disposing waste water without discharging 
onto the highway will also be required. 
 
The Council’s  guidance  on  Transport  Assessments/  Transport  Statements/ 
Travel Plans and Travel Statements which is available on the website: 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/transport-development-control-tdc   
 
Drawings of proposed highway works should be supplied as separate 
drawings, in separate files, as well as referenced in the Transport Assessment.  

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 

•       The National Planning Policy Framework February 2019  paragraphs 108-
111  

 
 
 
•   Planning Practice Guidance on Travel Plans, Transport Assessments 
and Statements:https://www.gov.uk/guidance/travel-plans-transport-
assessments-and-statements  

•           National Planning Policy for Waste, Appendix B 
Page 55

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/oxfordshire-freight-gateway
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/content/transport-development-control-tdc
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/travel-plans-transport-assessments-and-statements
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/travel-plans-transport-assessments-and-statements


PN6 
 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste 
 
Travel Plan / Travel Plan Statement 

 
For development which would lead to new or increased employment and/or 
new or additional visitor footfall, a draft travel plan should outline the way in 
which the transport implications of the development are going to be managed 
in order to ensure the minimum environmental, social and economic impacts, 
and a strategy for implementation. For example, in terms of a school it could 
indicate that any new pupil levels generated by the new proposal will be 
brought on to the site either by public transport or by hired coaches. In terms of 
a mineral or waste  application  this will  vary as  the  applicant  will  have  to 
indicate the amount of traffic movements that will occur during operating hours. 
The draft must identify a plan coordinator, the management arrangements for 
the plan – e.g. a steering group and the development timetable. The strategy 
could also include activities for marketing and promoting the plan to occupiers, 
users, visitors and residents of the site. 
 
Guidance on Travel Plans can be found on the website: 

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/sites/default/files/folders/documents/roadsand

transport/transportpoliciesandplans/newdevelopments/TravelAssessmentsandTra

velPlans.pdf 

This includes guidance on when a Travel Plan or Travel Plan Statement will be 
required. A Travel Plan is always needed for a new school.  

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 

•       The National Planning Policy Framework February 2019  paragraph 
11  
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6 
077/2116950.pdf 

 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/travel-plans-transport-assessments-and-statements  
 

Tree/hedgerow survey / Arboricultural Statement 
 

 

Where trees/hedges are present within or around an application site, the 
potential impact of development on existing trees/hedges both on the site or 
adjacent to it needs to be taken into account. Survey information should be 
provided in a form consistent with BS5837:2012: Trees in relation to design, 
demolition and construction. Typically this would include a tree survey that 
includes the positions of all individual trees of 75mm stem diameter measured 
at a height of 1.5 metres within the site and adjoining, overhanging or within 
the potential root impact zone of the site boundaries; the canopy spread of 
such trees; all shrub masses and hedges; and any other relevant features of 
the site such as banks,  slopes,  walls  and  fences  and  water features.  
Details of the trees should be recorded and the trees should be categorised 
in accordance with the tree method set out in BS 5837:2012.  
 
An arboricultural impact assessment must be undertaken and submitted using 
the tree survey data to determine the impact of development on the tree 
population.  This should include but not necessarily be limited to the 
identification of trees to be removed, retained and any tree work required to 

Page 56

http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/sites/default/files/folders/documents/roadsandtransport/transportpoliciesandplans/newdevelopments/TravelAssessmentsandTravelPlans.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/sites/default/files/folders/documents/roadsandtransport/transportpoliciesandplans/newdevelopments/TravelAssessmentsandTravelPlans.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/sites/default/files/folders/documents/roadsandtransport/transportpoliciesandplans/newdevelopments/TravelAssessmentsandTravelPlans.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6077/2116950.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/travel-plans-transport-assessments-and-statements


PN6 
 

implement the development as indicated in BS5837:2012. Consideration should 
be given to the impact of existing and future underground and overhead 
services on trees, any construction impacts e.g. changes in ground levels and 
surfaces, and impacts that may arise from the future use of the site e.g. 
shading.  Where a significant change to the tree cover is likely a more detailed 
assessment of the change in the natural capital value of the tree population 
(such as through i-tree eco) may be required. Ancient and veteran trees and 
the impacts upon them should be noted specifically.  
 
Where there are trees to be retained within a development an arboricultural 
method statement must be provided.  This will identify measures such as the 
location and nature of tree protection fencing, specific construction techniques 
where work is required close to trees, the protection of soils for future tree 
planting, the construction method for the installation of services etc.  
BS5837:2012 provides further information on this.   
 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 

•       The National Planning Policy Framework 2019 paragraphs 170 and 175 
 
•       BS5837:2012 Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction 
– Recommendations 
 

 
•         Hedgerow Regulations 1997 
 

 Trees in Hard Landscapes A Guide for Delivery, Trees and Design 
Action Group, Sept 2014 

 
 
Unstable Land Assessment 

 
If the proposal is on or adjoining land which is known or suspected to be 
unstable or potentially unstable this Statement should include reference to this 
issue. This may include the effects of both natural and man-made underground 
cavities; unstable slopes; and ground compression. The Unstable Land 
Assessment  will  need  to  take  account  of  the  potential  hazard  that  such 
instability could create both to the development itself and to the neighbouring 
area. 

 
The assessment should include the physical capability of the land to be 
developed; possible adverse effects of instability on the development; possible 
adverse effects of the development on the stability of adjoining land; possible 
effects on local amenities and conservation interests of the development and of 
any remedial or precautionary measures proposed. 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

 

•       The National Planning Policy Framework February 2019 paragraphs 
170, 178, 179  

 
 
• National Planning Practice Guidance – Land Stability 

 

Page 57



PN6 
 

http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/guidance/land-stability/ 
 
• National Planning Policy for Waste, Appendix B 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for- 
waste 

 

 
 

Ventilation/Extraction Statement 
 
Details of the position and design of any ventilation and extraction equipment 
(particularly those to be located at roof level) will be required to accompany all 
applications where they are proposed. Any application within 100 metres of a 
landfill site should include details of how landfill gas is to be dealt with. 

 
In  developments  where  an  odour  nuisance  may  be  an  issue  (e.g.  waste 
disposal operations), this should include an assessment of the effects on 
potential receptors and details of measures to mitigate odour at source must be 
included with any planning application. 

 
Waste Minimisation Statement 

 
Where proposed new development involves the demolition or excavation of the 
site, proposals should be supported by a plan which identifies the volume and 
type of material to be removed from the site and explores the opportunities for 
the recovery, reuse of material on the site and how any offsite disposal of waste 
material will be managed. 

Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 
 

• The National Planning Policy Framework February 2019  paragraph 8  
• National Planning Policy for Waste 

 
 

Informative: 
 

Environmental Statement 
 
The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 
Regulations 2017 require a developer to prepare an Environmental Statement 
(required for Schedule 1 projects and for some Schedule 2 projects as stated in 
the Regulations) to enable the Planning Authority to give proper consideration to 
the likely environmental effects of a proposed development. The Environmental 
Statement accompanies but does not in itself form part of the planning 
application.   A Screening Opinion can be obtained from the Council as to 
whether the development proposed comprises development falling within the 
scope of the Regulations and whether or not an Environmental Statement will 
be required. The Regulations provide a checklist of matters to be considered for 
inclusion in the Environmental Statement and require the developer to describe 
the likely significant effects of a development on the environment and to set out 
the proposed mitigation measures. You are strongly advised to seek Planning 
Officer advice on this issue prior to making your application and to seek a 
formal Scoping Opinion of the information to be included in the Environmental 
Statement. 

 
Planning Policy Drivers and related guidance: 

Page 58

http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/guidance/land-stability/
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-


PN6 
 

 
• The  Town  and  Country  Planning  (Environmental  Impact  Assessment) 

Regulations 2017 
 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/571/made  

 
• National Planning Practice Guidance – Environmental Impact Assessment 

http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/environment 
al-impact-assessment/ 

Page 59

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/571/made
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/environmental-impact-assessment/
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/environmental-impact-assessment/


PN6 
 

PART THREE – VALIDATION CHECKLISTS  

3.1 MINERALS DEVELOPMENT 

Information 
required 

When required Tick Reason why provided 
or not provided 

National Information Requirements 

Application Form All applications.   

Correct application fee All applications.   

Location Plan All applications other than Section 73/73A applications, for detailed 

submissions pursuant to planning conditions and non-material amendment 

applications. 

  

Site Plan All applications other than Section 73/73A applications, for detailed 

submissions pursuant to planning conditions and non-material amendment 

applications. 

  

Ownership/Agricultural 

Holding Certificates and 

Notices 

All applications other than detailed submissions pursuant to planning 

conditions, non-material amendment applications, Certificates for Existing 

or Proposed Lawful Development. 

  

Design and Access 

Statements 

Those planning applications as set out in the detailed local requirements 

above. 

  

Local Information Requirements   

Other Plans All applications other than Section 73/73A applications, for detailed 

submissions pursuant to planning conditions and non-material amendment 

applications. 

  

Aftercare/ restoration 

scheme 

All planning applications for mineral extraction   

P
age 60



PN6 
 

Air Quality Impact 

Assessment 

All planning applications when the site is within or adjoining an Air Quality 

Management Area or when a sensitive ecological site will be affected, or 

when there would be a significant increase in traffic generation. 

  

Birdstrike Risk 

Management Plan 

All planning applications that may have an adverse safety impact on aircraft 

through the creation of standing water and new woodland within 13 km of 

aerodromes. 

  

Biodiversity and 

geological 

conservation report 

Those planning applications when there is a potential impact on 

designated sites, protected species or habitats, or where a biodiversity 

survey is required. 

  

Borehole or Trial Pit 

Analysis 

All planning applications for the extraction of mineral deposits.   

Daylight/Sunlight 

Assessment 

All planning applications where there is a potential adverse impact upon 

the current levels of sunlight /daylighting enjoyed by adjoining properties 

and buildings. 

  

Draft Planning 

Obligations 

also known as Legal 

Agreement / Section 

106) 

• Where a planning application that may be unacceptable in planning 

terms may be made acceptable through the use of planning obligations, a 

statement with proposed Heads of Terms for an agreement may be 

submitted as part of the application. 

• Where Local Development Framework or Local Plan policies give details 

of likely agreements a statement of proposed Heads of Terms may be 

submitted as part of the application. 

  

Drainage Strategy  Applications for development of a new site, or amended site layout   

Dust Assessment For all planning applications for minerals developments which generate dust.   

P
age 61



PN6 
 

Flood Risk Assessment All planning applications for: 

• Development including change of use of 1 hectare or greater or 1000 m2 of 
gross floor space or greater, in Flood Zone 1 and all proposals, including 
change of use, for Development located in Flood Zones 
2 and 3. 
• Where development proposals may affect watercourses, flood defences or 
off-site flood mitigation. 
• Where the proposed development may be subject to other sources of 
flooding. 
• Where the Environment Agency, Internal Drainage Board and/or other 
bodies have indicated that there may be drainage problems or concerns that 
need addressing. 

  

Foul Sewage and 

Utilities Assessment 

All planning applications where  the proposed development results in 

any changes or replacement to an existing system, or the creation of a new 
system, or where the development will require connection to existing utility 
services including electricity, gas, telecommunications and water supply. 

  

Green Belt Statement All planning applications for inappropriate development in the Green Belt.   

Heritage and 

Archaeological 
Statement 

For all planning applications where a proposal is likely to affect or impact on a 

nationally important site including those designated as a Scheduled Ancient 

Monument; Historic Park or Garden; Registered Battlefield; Listed Building/ 

structure or Conservation Area, or the setting of any of these 

features whether designated or not; 

Where known archaeological features or remains; historic buildings or 

structures or historic landscapes are either on or adjacent to the application 

site, or their setting may be affected; 

Where a proposal involves the disturbance of ground or raising of ground 

levels where there may be archaeological remains, as may be specified in pre- 

application advice; Where significant infrastructure works are proposed, where 

there may be archaeological remains, as may be specified in pre-application 

advice; Where a hedge is to be removed or moved or would be affected by the 

proposal; and Where a proposal involves substantial demolition of an existing 

building. 

  

Hydrological 

Assessment 

Mineral planning applications where dewatering is proposed or proposals affect 

the water table. 

  

Land contamination 

assessment 

All planning applications where there is reason to suspect contamination of the 

application site or neighbouring land due to previous operations e.g. the 

existence of former industrial uses, the presence of former landfill sites, the 

presence of former mineral tips. 

  

P
age 62



PN6 
 

Landscape and Visual 

Impact Assessment 

Mineral applications within an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB),  or 

within the setting of an AONB where they might adversely affect the natural 

beauty or enjoyment of the AONB.  

Any major application that is considered EIA development or which has the 

potential to cause a major landscape and/or visual impacts due to its scale, 

nature and/or location.  

Minor applications will have to be judged on a case by case basis and might not 

require a full LVIA but another form of assessment such as a landscape 

appraisal. Applicants are encouraged to seek pre-application advice to 

determine the level of assessment required. 

  

Landscaping scheme Any planning application where the proposal contains, or is likely to require, 

some form of landscaping to make it acceptable in planning terms. Some form of 

landscaping is expected for most application types. 

  

Lawful Development 

Certificate Supporting 
Information 

When an application is made for a Lawful Development Certificate   

Lighting scheme  

 

Where planning applications propose external lighting.   

Noise impact 

assessment 

All planning applications where the proposal is likely to generate a noise level 

above background noise levels which may have a detrimental impact on the 

nearest noise sensitive property or other development or use of land (including 

nature conservation). 

  

Open space/playing 

field 

assessment 

Planning applications where the site is within or adjoining an area of designated 

or proposed open space/playing fields, common land or village greens.  Any 

application involving the loss or provision of playing fields should be supported 

by evidence of a district wide Playing Pitch Strategy. 

  

Parking provision All planning applications involving the provision of parking space.   

Photographs and/or 

Photomontages 

All planning applications where photographs or photomontages would enable 

assessment of characteristics of the site and its setting or as supporting 

evidence in the case of applications for Certificates for existing use or 

development. 

  

Rights of Way All planning applications where a public right of way traverses or 

passes close by the application site or involves the temporary diversion or 
closure of part of a route in order to construct the development. 

  

Statement of 

Community 

Involvement 

All planning applications which meet the definition set out in the section. 

 

  

P
age 63



PN6 
 

Supporting Planning 

Statement 

All planning applications other than section 73/73A applications should 

include this supporting document. 

  

Sustainability/Climate 

Change Appraisal 

All planning applications.   

Transport Statement/ 

Assessment 

All planning applications where there is likely to be a significant impact upon the 

existing transport network, and/or where additional parking is proposed. 

  

Travel Plan All planning applications that have the potential for significant traffic and travel-

related implications. 

  

Tree/Hedgerow Survey / 

Arboricultural 

Statement 

All planning applications where there are trees within, on the boundary or in 

close proximity to the site that could be affected by the proposed development. 

  

Unstable Land 

Assessment 

All planning applications where the proposal is on or adjoining land which 

is known or suspected to be unstable through the effects of natural and 

manmade cavities or unstable slopes 

  

Ventilation/Extraction 

Statement 

Where substantial ventilation or extraction equipment is proposed and there are 

properties in the immediate vicinity of the outlet that could be affected by noise 

or odours. 

  

Waste Minimisation 

Statement 
All planning applications where waste will be generated on site.   

 

3.2 WASTE DEVELOPMENT 
 

Information 
required 

When required  Tick Reason why provided 
or not provided 

National Information Requirements   

Application Form All applications.   

Correct application fee All applications.   

Location Plan All applications other than Section 73/73A applications, for detailed 

submissions pursuant to planning conditions and non-material amendment 

applications. 

  

P
age 64



PN6 
 

Site Plan All applications other than Section 73/73A applications, for detailed 

submissions pursuant to planning conditions and non-material amendment 

applications. 

  

Ownership/Agricultural 

Holding Certificates and 

Notices 

All applications other than detailed submissions pursuant to planning 

conditions, non-material amendment applications, Certificates for Existing 

or Proposed Lawful Development. 

  

Design and Access 

Statements 

Those planning applications as set out in the detailed local requirements 

above. 

  

Local Information Requirements   

Other Plans All applications other than Section 

73/73A applications, for detailed submissions pursuant to planning 

conditions and non-material amendment applications. 

  

Aftercare/resto

ration scheme 

All planning applications for mineral extraction, landfill or land-raising 

proposals. 

  

Air Quality Impact 

Assessment 

All planning applications when the site is within or adjoining an Air Quality 

Management Area or when a sensitive ecological site will be affected, or 

when there would be a significant increase in traffic generation. 

  

Birdstrike Risk 

Management Plan 

All planning applications that may have 

an adverse safety impact on aircraft through the creation of standing water and 

new woodland within 13 km of aerodromes. 

  

Biodiversity and 

geological 

conservation report 

Those planning applications when there is a potential impact on 

designated sites, protected species or habitats, or where a biodiversity 

survey is required. 

  

Bioaerosol Assessment Those planning applications when the proposal involves the storage or 

treatment of biodegradable waste material and is within 250 m of residential 

properties or other sensitive locations. 

  

Daylight/Sunlight 

Assessment 

All planning  applications  where there is a  potential  adverse impact 

upon the current levels of sunlight /daylighting enjoyed by adjoining  

properties  and buildings. 

  

P
age 65



PN6 
 

Draft Planning 

Obligations 

also known as Legal 
Agreement / Section 
106) 

• Where a planning application that 

may be unacceptable in planning terms may be made acceptable through the 

use of planning obligations, a statement with proposed Heads of 

Terms for an agreement may be submitted as part of the application. 

• Where Local Development Framework or Local Plan policies give details of 

likely agreements a statement of proposed Heads of 

Terms may be submitted as part of the application. 

  

Drainage Strategy Applications for development of a new site, or amended site layout   

Dust Assessment For all planning applications for waste developments which generate dust   

Flood Risk Assessment All planning applications for: 

• Development including change of use of 1 hectare or greater or 1000 m2 of 

gross floor space or greater, in 

Flood Zone 1 and all proposals, including change of use, for Development 

located in Flood Zones 

2 and 3. 

• Where development proposals may affect watercourses, flood defences or 

off-site flood mitigation. 

• Where the proposed development may be subject to other sources of 

flooding. 

• Where the Environment Agency, Internal Drainage Board and/or other 

bodies have indicated that there may be drainage problems or concerns that 

need addressing. 

  

Foul Sewage and 

Utilities 

Assessment 

All planning applications where the proposed development results in any 

changes or replacement to an existing system, or the creation of a new system, 

or where the development will require connection to existing utility services 

including electricity, gas, telecommunications and water supply. 

  

Green Belt Statement All planning applications for inappropriate development in the Green Belt.   

P
age 66



PN6 
 

Heritage and 

Archaeological 
Statement 

For all planning applications where a proposal is likely to affect or impact on a 

nationally important site including those designated as a Scheduled Ancient 

Monument; Historic Park or Garden; Registered Battlefield; Listed Building/ 

structure or Conservation Area, or the setting of any of these features whether 

designated or not; Where known archaeological features or remains; historic 

buildings or structures or historic landscapes are either on or adjacent to the 

application site, or their setting may be affected; 

Where a proposal involves the disturbance of ground or raising of ground 
levels where there may be archaeological remains, as may be specified in pre- 
application advice; Where significant infrastructure works are proposed, where 
there may be archaeological remains, as may be specified in pre-application 
advice; Where a hedge is to be removed or moved or would be affected by the 
proposal; and Where a proposal involves substantial demolition of an existing 
building. 

  

Hydrological 

Assessment 

Waste planning applications where proposals affect the water table.   

Land contamination 

assessment 

All planning applications where there 

is reason to suspect contamination of the application site or neighbouring land 

due to previous operations e.g. the existence of former industrial uses, the 

presence of former landfill sites, the presence of former mineral tips. 

  

Landscape and Visual 

Impact Assessment 

(LVIA) 

Waste applications within an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), or 

within the setting of an AONB where proposed development might adversely 

affect the natural beauty or enjoyment of the AONB.  

Any major application that is considered EIA development or which has the 

potential to cause a major landscape and/or visual impact due to its scale, 

nature and/or location.  

Minor applications will have to be judged on a case by case basis and might not 

require a full LVIA but another form of assessment such as a landscape 

appraisal. Applicants are encouraged to seek pre-application advice to 

determine the level of assessment required. 

  

Landscaping scheme Any planning application where the proposal contains, or is likely to require, 

some form of landscaping to make it acceptable in planning terms. 

Some form of landscaping is expected for most application types. 

  

Lawful Development 

Certificate Supporting 
Information 

When an application is made for a Lawful Development Certificate   

P
age 67



PN6 
 

Lighting scheme  

 

Where planning applications propose external lighting.   

Noise impact 

assessment 

All planning applications where the proposal is likely to generate a noise 

level above background noise levels which may have a detrimental impact on 

the nearest noise sensitive property or other development or use of land 

(including nature conservation). 

  

Open space/playing 

field 

assessment 

Planning applications where the site is within or adjoining an area of designated 

or proposed open space/playing fields, common land or village greens.  Any 

application involving the loss or provision of playing fields should be supported 

by evidence of a district wide Playing Pitch Strategy. 

  

Parking provision All planning applications involving the provision of parking space.   

Photographs and/or 

Photomontages 

All planning applications where photographs or photomontages would enable 

assessment of characteristics of the site and its setting or as supporting 

evidence in the case of applications for Certificates for existing use or 

development. 

  

Rights of Way All planning applications where a public right of way traverses or 

passes close by the application site or involves the temporary diversion or 
closure of part of a route in order to construct the development. 

  

Statement of 

Community 

Involvement 

All planning applications. 

 

  

Supporting Planning 

Statement 

All applications other than section 73/73A applications should include this 

supporting document. 

  

Sustainability/Climate 

Change Appraisal 

All planning applications.   

Transport Statement/ 

Assessment 

All planning applications where there is likely to be a significant impact upon the 

existing transport network, and/or where additional parking is proposed. 

  

Travel Plan All planning applications that have the 

potential for significant traffic and travel-related implications. 

  

Tree/Hedgerow Survey / 

Arboricultural 

Statement 

All planning applications where there are trees within, on the boundary or in 

close proximity to the site that could be affected by the proposed development. 

  

Unstable Land 

Assessment 

All planning applications where the proposal is on or adjoining land which 

is known or suspected to be unstable through the effects of natural and 

manmade cavities or unstable slopes. 

  

Ventilation/Extraction 

Statement 

Where substantial ventilation or extraction equipment is proposed and there are 

properties in the immediate vicinity of the outlet that could be affected by noise 

or odours. 

  

P
age 68



PN6 
 

Waste Minimisation 

Statement 

All planning applications where waste will be generated on site.   

 

3.3 COUNTY DEVELOPMENT (REGULATION 3) 
 

Information 
required 

When required Tick Reason why provided 
or not provided 

National Information Requirements   

Application Form All applications.   

Correct application fee All applications.   

Location Plan All applications other than Section 73/73A applications, for detailed 

submissions pursuant to planning conditions and non-material amendment 

applications. 

  

Site Plan All applications other than Section 73/73A applications, for detailed 

submissions pursuant to planning conditions and non-material amendment 

applications. 

  

Ownership/Agricultural 

Holding Certificates and 

Notices 

All applications other than detailed submissions pursuant to planning 

conditions, non-material amendment applications, Certificates for Existing 

or Proposed Lawful Development. 

  

Design and Access 

Statements 

Those planning applications as set out in the detailed local requirements 

above. 

  

 
Local Information Requirements 

  

Other Plans All applications other than Section 73/73A applications, for detailed 

submissions pursuant to planning conditions and non-material amendment 

applications. 

  

Aftercare/ 

restoration 

scheme 

All planning applications for mineral extraction, landfill or land-raising 

proposals. 

  

P
age 69



PN6 
 

Air Quality Impact 

Assessment 

All planning applications when the site is within or adjoining an Air Quality 

Management Area or when a sensitive ecological site will be affected, or 

when there would be a significant increase in traffic generation.  

  

Birdstrike Risk 

Management Plan 

All planning applications that may have 

an adverse safety impact on aircraft through the creation of standing water and 

new woodland within 13 km of aerodromes. 

  

Biodiversity and 

geological 

conservation report 

Those planning applications when there is a potential impact on 

designated sites, protected species or habitats, or where a biodiversity 

survey is required. 

  

Bioaerosol Assessment Those planning applications when the proposal involves the storage or 

treatment of biodegradable waste material and is within 250 m of residential 

properties or other sensitive locations. 

  

Borehole or Trial Pit 

Analysis 

All planning applications for the extraction of mineral deposits.   

Daylight/Sunlight 

Assessment 

All p l a n n in g  a p p l i c a t i o n s  where there is a potential adverse impact 

upon the current levels of sunlight /daylighting enjoyed by adjoining 

properties and buildings. 

  

Draft Planning 

Obligations 

also known as Legal 
Agreement / Section 
106) 

• Where a planning application that 

may be unacceptable in planning terms may be made acceptable through the 

use of planning obligations, a 

statement with proposed Heads of 

Terms for an agreement may be submitted as part of the application. 

• Where Local Development Framework or Local Plan policies give details of 

likely agreements a statement of proposed Heads of Terms may be submitted 

as part of the application. 

  

Drainage Strategy  Applications for development of a new site, or amended site layout   

P
age 70



PN6 
 

Dust Assessment For all planning applications for developments which generate dust including 

major construction works. 

  

Flood Risk Assessment All planning applications for: 

• Development including change of use of 1 hectare or greater or 1000 m2 of 

gross floor space or greater, in 

Flood Zone 1 and all proposals, including change of use, for Development 

located in Flood Zones 

2 and 3. 

• Where development proposals may affect watercourses, flood defences or 

off-site flood mitigation. 

• Where the proposed development may be subject to other sources of 

flooding. 

• Where the Environment Agency, Internal Drainage Board and/or other 

bodies have indicated that there may be drainage problems or concerns that 

need addressing. 

  

Foul Sewage and 

Utilities 

Assessment 

All planning applications where the proposed development results in any 

changes or replacement to an existing system, or the creation of a new system, 

or where the development will require connection to existing utility services 

including electricity, gas, telecommunications and water supply. 

  

Green Belt Statement All planning applications for inappropriate development in the Green Belt.   

Heritage and 

Archaeological 
Statement 

For all planning applications where a proposal is likely to affect or impact on a 

nationally important site including those designated as a Scheduled Ancient 

Monument; Historic Park or Garden; Registered Battlefield; Listed Building/ 

structure or Conservation Area, or the setting of any of these 

features whether designated or not; Where known archaeological features or 
remains; historic buildings or structures or historic landscapes are either on or 
adjacent to the application site, or their setting may be affected; 
Where a proposal involves the disturbance of ground or raising of ground 
levels where there may be archaeological remains, as may be specified in pre- 
application advice; Where significant infrastructure works are proposed, where 
there may be archaeological remains, as may be specified in pre-application 
advice; Where a hedge is to be removed or moved or would be affected by the 
proposal; and Where a proposal involves substantial demolition of an existing 
building. 

  

Hydrological 

Assessment 

Planning applications proposals affect the water table.   

P
age 71



PN6 
 

Land contamination 

assessment 

All planning applications where there is reason to suspect contamination of the 

application site or neighbouring land due to previous operations e.g. 

the existence of former industrial uses, the presence of former landfill sites, the 

presence of former mineral tips. 

  

Landscape and Visual 

Impact Assessment 

All applications within an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), or within 

the setting of an AONB where it might adversely affect the natural beauty or 

enjoyment of the AONB.  

Any major application that is considered EIA development or which has the 

potential to cause a major landscape and/or visual impacts due to its scale, 

nature and/or location.  

Minor applications will have to be judged on a case by case basis and might not 

require a full LVIA but another form of assessment such as a landscape 

appraisal. Applicants are encouraged to seek pre-application advice to 

determine the level of assessment required. 

  

Landscaping scheme Any planning application where the proposal contains, or is likely to require, 

some form of landscaping to make it acceptable in planning terms. 

Some form of landscaping is expected for most application types. 

  

Lawful Development 

Certificate Supporting 
Information 

When an application is made for a Lawful Development Certificate 

 

  

Lighting scheme  

 

Where planning applications propose external lighting.   

Noise impact 

assessment 

All planning applications where the proposal is likely to generate a noise level 

above background noise levels which may have a detrimental impact on the 

nearest noise sensitive property or other development or use of land 

(including nature conservation). 

  

Open space/playing 

field 

assessment 

Planning applications where the site is within or adjoining an area of designated 

or proposed open space/playing fields, common land or village greens.  Any 

application involving the loss or provision of playing fields should be supported 

by evidence of a district wide Playing Pitch Strategy. 

  

Parking provision All planning applications involving the provision of parking space.   

Photographs and/or 

Photomontages 

All planning applications where photographs or photomontages would enable 

assessment of characteristics of the site and its setting or as supporting 

evidence in the case of applications for Certificates for existing use or 

development. 

  

P
age 72



PN6 
 

Rights of Way All planning applications where a public right of way traverses or passes close 

by the application site or involves the temporary diversion or closure of part of a 

route in order to construct the development. 

  

Statement of 

Community 

Involvement 

All planning applications. 

 

  

Supporting Planning 

Statement 

All applications should include this supporting document.   

Sustainability/ 

Climate Change 

Appraisal 

 All planning applications.   

Transport Statement/ 

Assessment 

All applications where there is likely to be a significant impact upon the existing 

transport network, and/or where additional parking is proposed. 

  

Travel Plan All planning applications that have the potential for significant traffic and travel-

related implications. 

  

Tree/Hedgerow Survey / 

Arboricultural 

Statement 

All planning applications where there are trees within, on the boundary or in 

close proximity to the site that could be affected by the proposed development. 

  

Unstable Land 

Assessment 

All planning applications where the proposal is on or adjoining land which 

is known or suspected to be unstable through the effects of natural and 

manmade cavities, or unstable slopes. 

  

Ventilation/Extraction 

Statement 

Where substantial ventilation or extraction equipment is proposed and there are 

properties in the immediate vicinity of the outlet that could be affected by noise 

or odours. 

  

Waste Minimisation 

Statement 

All planning applications where waste will be generated on site.   

P
age 73



PN6 
 

Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – County Planning Authority Requirements for Biodiversity and 
Geodiversity 

 
A. Surveys 

 
Surveys are required to determine whether notable species, habitats or designated 
sites may be adversely affected by development. All surveys carried out should be 
assessed (see ‗Assessment‘ below). 
Surveys should be undertaken and prepared by competent persons with suitable 
ecological qualifications and experience and must be carried out at an appropriate 
time and month of the year, in suitable weather conditions and using nationally 
recognised survey guidelines/methods where available. 

 
ECOLOGICAL SURVEY SEASONS 

 

Key:  Optimal Survey Time              Possible Survey Time     

 
  

JAN 
 

FEB 
 

MAR 
 

APR 
 

MAY 
 

JUNE 
 

JULY 
 

AUG 
 

SEPT 
 

OCT 
 

NOV 
 

DEC 

 
Badgers 

            

Bats (Initial Survey)             

Bats 
(Hibernation Roosts) 

             
   
    

Bats 
(Summer Roosts) 

             

 
Bats (Activity Survey) 

            

 
Birds (Breeding) 

            

 
BIRDS (Over Wintering) 

            

 
Dormice 

            

Extended Phase 1 Survey            

 
Great–Crested Newts 
(Aquatic survey) 

            

    
 

Great–Crested Newts 
(Habitat assessment) 

            

 
Invertebrates 

            

 
Otters 

            

 
Reptiles 

             
    
    

 
Water Voles 

            

 
White-Clawed Crayfish 

            

Page 74



PN6 
 
 

 
Habitats/Vegetation 

            

 
 
 

 
A  survey  should  be  informed  by  the  results  of  a  search  for  ecological  and/or 
geological data. The Thames Valley Environmental Records (TVERC)  Thames Valley 
Environmental  Records  Centre  (TVERC)  is  the  Local  Biological  Records  Centre 
(Email – tverc@oxfordshire.gov.uk or Tel. 01865 815451) who can search for the 
location of notable species and habitats/sites on or near to a development site. In 
addition see  https://magic.defra.gov.uk/ - a useful Natural England resource on the 
distribution of wildlife sites and habitats. 

 
A survey must be to an appropriate level of scope and detail and must: 

 

 

     
1.      What species / habitats are involved? 
2.      What is the population level, or habitat area, likely to be affected by the 

proposal? 
3.      What is the impact of the proposal on protected or notable species / priority 

habitat?  
4.      Is the impact necessary or acceptable? 
5.      What can be done to mitigate the impact? 
6.      Will a licence be required from Natural England? 

 

 

All surveys must be undertaken to the standards in British Standard 42020 
(Biodiversity – Code of Practice for Planning & Development, 2013) 

 
General points to note regarding surveys are as follows: 

 
     For certain species and habitats surveys can be carried out at any time of year, 

but  for  other species, particular times of year are required to give the most 
reliable results, as indicated in the diagram above 

 

     Surveys conducted outside of optimal times (diagram above) may be unreliable. 
For certain species (e.g. Great Crested Newt) surveys over the winter period are 
unlikely to yield any useful information. Similarly negative results gained outside 
the optimal period should not be interpreted as absence of a species and further 
survey work may be required during the optimal survey season. This is especially 
important where existing surveys and records show the species has been found 
previously on site or in the surrounding area.  An application may not be valid 
until survey information is gathered from an optimum time of year. 

 
     Species surveys are also very weather dependent so it may be necessary to 

delay a survey or to carry out more than one survey if the weather is not suitable, 
e.g. heavy rain is not good for surveying for otters, as it washes away their 
spraint (droppings).  Likewise bat surveys carried out in wet or cold weather may 
not yield accurate results. 

 
      Absence of evidence of a species does not necessarily mean that the species is 

not there, nor that its habitat is not protected (e.g. a bat roost is protected 
whether any bats are present or not). 

 

 

Page 75

http://www.tverc.org/
http://www.tverc.org/
http://www.tverc.org/
mailto:tverc@oxfordshire.gov.uk
http://www.natureonthemap.org.uk/


PN6 
 

     Local E n v i r o n m e n t a l Records Centres (see TVERC above) o r  
s p e c i e s  i n t e r e s t  g r o u p s  may have  useful existing 
information and records. 

 
     Competent  ecologists  should  carry  out  ecological  surveys.  Where  surveys 

involve disturbance, capture or handling of a protected species, then only a 

licensed person can undertake such surveys (e.g. issued by Natural England). 
Surveys should follow published national or local methodologies.   More 
information  on  appropriate  ecological  survey  methods  can  be  found  in 
‗Guidance on Survey Methodology’ published on the Internet by the Institute of 
Ecology and Environmental Management available at:  www.cieem.net.  Further 
details on surveys can also be found on the Natural England website at: 
www.naturalengland.org.uk. 

 

 
 

B. Assessments 
 
Assessments should identify and describe potential development impacts likely to 
harm notable species, habitats, features or designated sites, (these should include 
both direct and indirect effects both during construction and afterwards).  Please note 
that  adverse  effects  should  be  avoided  wherever  possible  and  if  unavoidable 
mitigated or as a last resort compensated. The type of assessment will depend on 
the scale and size of development and will usually be based on both desk and field 
surveys. The assessment should be carried out by a suitably qualified and 
experienced person and should include: 

 

 

   Evaluation of the biodiversity/geodiversity importance of the site and 
surrounds 

   Assessment of all direct and indirect impacts (including from noise, vibration, 
dust, pollution ,dewatering & any other hydrological impacts) of the proposed 
development on biodiversity/geodiversity (including a summary of the short- 
term and long-term impacts) 

   How avoidance and/or mitigation and/or compensation measures have been 
considered and chosen 

Provision of restoration and where possible enhancement details 

Arrangements for appropriate after-care and long-term management 
 
This information might be incorporated into an Environment Statement, if one is 
necessary under the Environmental Impact Regulations. It is recommended that for 
biodiversity it is based on the Institute of Ecology and Environmental Management 
(IEEM) Guidelines for Ecological Impact Assessment in the United Kingdom (2006) 
available at https://www.cieem.net/ecia-guidelines-terrestrial-freshwater-and-coastal-    

 
The County Council encourages proposals that will enhance, restore or add to notable 

species populations, designated sites, habitats or other biodiversity or geological 

features. Minerals and waste development should conserve and deliver a measurable 

net gain in biodiversity. The Assessment should give an indication of likely change in 

the area (hectares) of habitats/features on the site after development, including 

whether there will be a net loss or gain. The County Council expect the assessment of 

effects and mitigation to use a Biodiversity Impact Calculator, such as the one 

developed by TVERC. 

 
Please note there may be a need to request further information, which cannot always 

Page 76

http://www.cieem.net./
http://www.naturalengland.org.uk/conservation/wildlife-management-licensing/default.htm
https://www.cieem.net/ecia-guidelines-terrestrial-freshwater-and-coastal-


PN6 
 

be anticipated until the application is being considered and consultee responses have 
been received. 

Page 77



PN6 
 

Appendix 2 – Table A. Local Requirements for Designated Sites, Priority 
Habitats and Other Features: Criteria (Trigger List) for when a Survey and 
Assessment is required 

 
1. DESIGNATED SITES 

 
Internationally designated sites Special Protection Area (SPA) 

Special Area of Conservation (SAC) 
Ramsar Site 

 
Nationally designated sites Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) 

National Nature Reserve (NNR) 
 
Regionally and locally designated sites Local Wildlife Sites 

Local Nature Reserve (LNR) 

Oxford City Wildlife Sites 

 
Check  https://magic.defra.gov.uk/ -  and/or contact TVERC 

 

Designated Sites likely to be affected by the proposal?  Yes/No 
 

 
 
2. HABITATS OF PRINCIPAL IMPORTANCE FOR BIODIVERSITY under S.41 of the NERC 

Act 2006 (also known as Priority Habitats) – In Oxfordshire these habitats include: 
 

 Eutrophic standing open water (including lakes and canals), mesotrophic lakes and 
ponds 

 Rivers 
 Fen, marsh & swamp (including reedbeds & rush pastures) 

 Lowland raised bog 
 Lowland beech and yew woodland 
 Wet woodland 
 Lowland mixed deciduous woodland (e.g. ancient woodland) 
 Hedgerows 
 Wood-pasture and parkland 
 Lowland calcareous grassland (e.g. species-rich limestone grasslands) 
 Lowland heathland and/or dry acid grassland 
 Lowland meadows (e.g. species-rich neutral flower meadows) 
 Traditional orchards 
 Open mosaic habitats on previously developed land 

 

 
 

IMPORTANT - this is not an exclusive list for the county and the English List of Habitats of Principal 
Importance for Biodiversity (available from DEFRA) is the full reference to be used. 

 
For general information see  www.defra.gov.uk. For distribution check 
https://magic.defra.gov.uk/ -   and contact TVERC. 

 

Priority Habitats likely to be affected by the proposal?  Yes/No 

Page 78

http://www.natureonthemap.org.uk/
http://www.natureonthemap.org.uk/
http://www.natureonthemap.org.uk/
http://www.defra.gov.uk/wildlife-countryside/cl/habitats/index.htm
http://www.natureonthemap.org.uk/
http://www.natureonthemap.org.uk/
http://www.natureonthemap.org.uk/


PN6 
 

3. OTHER BIODIVERSITY FEATURES 

(including  those identified by the Local Biodiversity Partnership - see paragraph 84 DEFRA 
Circular 01/2005)) 

 
 Secondary Woodland and Mature/Veteran Trees 
 Caves, , sink holes and disused tunnels and mines (e.g. roosts for bats) 
 Trees, scrub and structures used for nesting by breeding birds 
 Previously  developed land with biodiversity interest (e.g. supporting habitats and 

notable plants, invertebrates, amphibians or any reptile) 
 Urban green space (e.g. parks, allotments, flower-rich road verges and railway 

embankments ) 
 Other habitats and features identified in the Oxfordshire’s Biodiversity Action Plan & 

sites within or adjacent to a Conservation Target Area. 
 

. 
 
Distribution of sites supporting these features might be obtained by contacting TVERC. 

 

Other Biodiversity Features likely to be affected by the proposal?  Yes/No 
 

 
 
Exceptions When a Full Survey and Assessment May Not Be Required 

 
International and National Sites: A survey and assessment will not be required where the 
applicant is able to provide copies of pre-application correspondence with Natural England, 
where the latter confirms in writing that they are satisfied that the proposed development will 
not affect any statutory sites designated for their national or international importance. 

 
Regional and Local Sites and Priority Habitats and Other Features: A survey and 
assessment will not be required where the applicant is able to provide copies of pre- 
application correspondence with the Planning Authority‘s Ecology Officer 
that they are satisfied that the proposed development will not affect any regional or local sites 
designated for their local nature conservation importance or any other priority habitats or 
listed features. 

Page 79



PN6 
 

B
a
ts

 

B
a
rn

 O
w

ls
 

B
re

e
d
in

g
 

B
ir
d
s
 

 G
t.
 C

re
s
te

d
 

N
e
w

ts
 

O
tt

e
rs

 

D
o
rm

o
u
s
e
 

W
a
te

r 
V

o
le

 

B
a
d
g
e
r 

R
e
p
ti
le

s
 

A
m

p
h
ib

ia
n
s
 

P
la

n
ts

 

W
h
it
e
- 

c
la

w
e
d
 

C
ra

y
fi
s
h
 

 

Appendix 3 - Table B. Local Requirements for Protected Species: Trigger List for when a Survey and Assessment is required 

 
See  www.jncc.gov.uk and www.naturalengland.org.uk for information on species protection and contact TVERC who can check for known records of all 
notable species. 

 
Where there is a black dot under a species column this indicates a survey & assessment trigger for that species. If the proposal matches the trigger then a 
‗Yes‘  should be checked in the final column. If pre-application advice/evidence from the Planning Authority or qualified ecologist indicates otherwise then this 
must be stated under the ‗No‘ column and the advice/evidence submitted with the application. See further notes beneath this table. 

 

 
 

Proposals for Development That Will 
Trigger a Legally Protected Species Survey 

 

 
 
No Yes 

 

 
 
 
 

Proposed development which includes the modification conversion, demolition or removal 
of buildings and structures (especially roof voids) involving the following: 
    all agricultural buildings (e.g. farmhouses and barns) of traditional brick or stone 

construction and/or with exposed wooden beams greater than 20cm thick; 
 
    all buildings with weather boarding and/or hanging tiles that are within 200m of 

woodland and/or water; 
 
    pre-1960 detached buildings and structures within 200m of woodland and/or water; 

 
    pre-1914 buildings within 400m of woodland and/or water; 

 
    pre-1914 buildings with gable ends or slate roofs, regardless of location; 

 
    all tunnels, mines, kilns, ice-houses, adits, military fortifications, air raid shelters, 

cellars and similar underground ducts and structures; 
 
    all bridge structures, aqueducts and viaducts (especially over water and wet ground). 

  

  

  

  

  

 
 

 
 



  

 
 

   

  


  

  



  



 
 




  



  





      

     

     

  

 

 

 

 

    

    

    

 

  







P
age 80

http://www.jncc.gov.uk/page-1747
http://www.jncc.gov.uk/page-1747


PN6 
 

B
a
ts

 

B
a
rn

 O
w

ls
 

B
re

e
d
in

g
 B

ir
d
s
 

G
re

a
t 

C
re

s
te

d
 N

e
w

t 

O
tt

e
rs

 

D
o
rm

o
u
s
e
 

W
a
te

r 
V

o
le

 

B
a
d
g
e
rs

 

R
e
p
ti
le

s
 

A
m

p
h
ib

ia
n
s
 

P
la

n
ts

 

W
h
it
e
-c

la
w

e
d
 

C
ra

y
fi
s
h
 

 

Proposals involving lighting of churches and listed buildings or flood lighting of green space 
within 50m of woodland, water, field hedgerows or lines of trees with obvious connectivity 
to woodland or water. 

 
Proposals affecting woodland, or field hedgerows and/or lines of trees with obvious 
connectivity to woodland or water bodies. 

 

  

 
 
  

     

 

 
Proposed tree work (felling or lopping) and/or development affecting: 

 
    old and veteran trees that are older than 100 years; 
    trees with obvious holes, cracks or cavities, 

    trees with a girth greater than 1m at chest height; 

 
 

  

  

 

 

 

 
Proposals affecting gravel pits or quarries   and natural cliff faces and rock outcrops 
with crevices, caves or swallets/sinkholes. 

 

  

 
Major proposals within 500m of a pond or minor proposals within 100m of pond 

 
(Note: A major proposals is one that is more than 10 dwellings or more than 0.5 hectares 

or for non-residential development is more than 1000m
2   

floor area or more than 1 hectare) 

   





 
Proposals affecting of rivers, streams, canals, lakes, or other aquatic habitats. 





 

  

   

 
 

Proposals affecting: 
 

‗derelict‘ land (brownfield sites), allotments and railway land 

  



 



     



 
  

  

         

 
Proposed development affecting any buildings, structures, storage or waste piles and other 
suitable features that protected species may be reasonably likely to inhabit or locations 

where protected species are known to be present *on site or in the immediate vicinity 

  

  

         

   

 

 

    

 

  



 
 
 
 
 

* Confirmed as present by either a data search (for instance from TVERC) or as 
notified to the developer by the Planning Authority, and/or by Natural England, the 
Environment Agency or other nature conservation organisation. 

P
age 81



PN6 
 

Exceptions for When a Full Protected Species Survey and Assessment May Not Be Required 
 

a.   Following consultation by the applicant at the pre-application stage, the LPA has stated in writing that no protected species surveys and assessments are required. 
 

b.   If it is clear that no protected species are present, despite the guidance in the above table indicating that they are likely, the applicant should provide evidence with the planning application to 
demonstrate that such species are absent (e.g. this might be in the form of a letter or brief report from a suitably qualified and experienced person, or a relevant local nature conservation 
organisation). 

 
c.    If it is clear that the development proposal will not affect any protected species present, then only limited information needs to be submitted.  This information should, however, (i) demonstrate 

that there will be no significant effect on any protected species present and (ii) include a statement acknowledging that the applicant is aware that it is a criminal offence to disturb or harm 
protected species should they subsequently be found or disturbed. 

 
In some situations, it may be appropriate for an applicant to provide a protected species survey and report for only one or a few of the species shown in the Table above, e.g. those that are likely to 
be affected by a particular activity.  Applicants should make clear which species are included in the report and which are not because exceptions apply. 

 
Natural England is in the process of bringing in new protected species policy which may alter the way developers can approach dealing with these species.  Four new policies are proposed that may enable developers to 
adopt different approaches to protected species survey, protection and mitigation.  This may help avoid delays according to survey seasons, but may increase spend on habitat provision etc.  Taking advice from a 
qualified ecologist will help decide how to approach protected species on any specific site. 
 
In addition to the four new policies, in 2018, a pilot Great Crested Newt project will operate across Vale of White Horse, South Oxfordshire and Oxford City districts.  ‘District level licensing’ will come into place and the 
MPA will be able to accept development that may affect this species under this new scheme, provided work is done nearby under the scheme to improve habitat for the species.  Developers will be able to choose 
whether to enter the pilot project or to carry out standard survey and mitigation.  Taking advice from a qualified ecologist will help decide which approach is best for a specific site. 

P
age 82



PN6 
 

Appendix 4. Local Requirements for Designated Geodiversity Sites and 
Features: Criteria (Trigger List) for when a Survey and Assessment are 
Required 

 

 
 
1. DESIGNATED SITES 

 
Nationally designated sites Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) 

National Nature Reserves (NNRs) 
 
Regionally and locally designated sites    Regionally Important Geological Sites 
(RIGS) 

Local Nature Reserves (LNRs) 

 
Check  www.magic.gov.uk for further information. 

 
Designated Sites likely to be affected by the proposal? Yes/No 

 

 
 
2. OTHER GEOLOGICAL CONSERVATION FEATURES 
(based on the Earth Science Conservation Classification) 
Presence of these features outside designated sites may need to be checked and the relevant 

Local Geodiversity Action Plan (where available). 
 

 
 

 
 
Exposure 
or 
Extensive 
Sites 

 Active quarries and pits 
 Disused quarries and pits 
 River and stream sections 
 Inland outcrops 
 Exposure underground mines and tunnels 
 Extensive buried interest 

 Road, rail and canal cuttings 
 

 
 
Integrity 
Site 

 Static (fossil) geomorphological 
 Active process geomorphological 
 Caves 

 Karst (i.e. water dissolved limestone systems) 
 

 
 
Finite 
Site 

 Finite mineral, fossil or other geological 
 Mine dumps 
 Finite underground mines and tunnels 

 Finite buried interest 
 
 
 
 

Exceptions When a Full Survey and Assessment May Not Be Required 
National Sites: A survey and report will not be required where the applicant is able to 
provide copies of pre-application correspondence with Natural England, where the latter 

Page 83

http://www.magic.gov.uk/


PN6 
 

confirms in writing that they are satisfied that the proposed development will not affect any 

statutory sites designated for their national importance. 

 
Regional and Local Sites: A survey and report will not be required where the applicant is able to 

provide copies of pre-application correspondence  with appropriate local geological experts (such as 

the Oxfordshire Geology Trust) that they are satisfied that the proposed development  will not affect 

any regional or local sites designated for their local nature conservation importance. 

Page 84



PN6 
 

 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



PN7 
 

For:  PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE – 09 December 2019  

By:    Director for Planning and Place 

 

 

Division Affected 

 

Division Affected:           All 

Contact Officer:           Vit Ondruch, Monitoring and Enforcement Officer                  

Tel:    07785 453256 

Recommendation  

The report recommends that the Schedule of Compliance Monitoring Visits in Annex 

1 and the Schedule of Enforcement Cases in Annex 2 be noted. 

Introduction 

 
1. This report updates members on the regular monitoring of minerals and waste 

planning permissions for the period 1 April 2019 to 30 October 2019 and on the 
progress of planning enforcement cases. 

Compliance Monitoring Visits 

2. County Council officers endeavour to pursue and foster good working 
relationships with operators following the grant of planning permission.  The 
effective monitoring of sites can avoid problems developing and by acting in a 
proactive manner we can be a positive educator of good practice. This 
approach can avoid the necessity to act in a reactive way after problems 
emerge and can avoid the need for enforcement action. Through our efforts we 
seek to: 

 
I. identify potential problems early and avoid them developing; 
 
II. minimise the need to resort to enforcement or other action; 

 
III. encourage good practice in the first instance thus reducing the need 

to apply sanctions against bad practice; 
 

IV. review planning decisions and agreements made with the County 
Council; 

 
V. facilitate regular liaison and dialogue between operators, the 

public/local community representatives and the council officers. 
 

PROGRESS REPORT ON MINERALS AND WASTE SITE MONITORING AND 

ENFORCEMENT 

Page 87

Agenda Item 7



PN7 
 

3. All sites with an active planning permission are regularly visited on a formal 
basis. A written report is produced following a site visit and shared with the site 
occupant. Where elements of non-compliance with a consent are identified this 
can result in subsequent compliance with matters that are outstanding or in a 
planning application being made to regularise unauthorised activities on site. 
 

4. Annex 1 provides a schedule of all the sites we monitor. It includes two 
columns, one which sets out the target visits for the fiscal year 1 April 2019 to 
30 April 2020, the second column sets out the number of compliance 
monitoring visits that have been carried out for 7 months from 1 April 2019 to 
30 October 2019.  

 

5. To try and achieve good environmental standards countywide, officers have 
committed to monitoring planning permissions across all the mineral and waste 
related sites in Oxfordshire. However, you will see that some sites have a zero 
target, these are minimal risk, small scale or dormant sites (such as sewage 
treatment works) which we record but will only visit every other year.  

 
6. Of all the 115 sites, 48 are within the remit of Government Regulations that 

allow the council to charge a fee for conditions monitoring, in that they relate 
directly to the winning and working of mineral permissions or directly to land 
filling permissions. These ‘Chargeable Sites’ are shaded grey in Annex 1. 

 

7. The remaining non-chargeable sites include scrap yards, recycling operations, 
waste transfer stations, sewage works and composting operations. 

 

8. The current charges are £397 for an active site and aftercare visits. £132 is 
chargeable for a dormant site where no activity is taking place. 

 

9. Officers determine the target number of visits for each site on a “risk 
assessment” basis for each site drawing on the following points: 

 
I. sensitivity of location 

II. size and type of development 
III. number and complexity of planning conditions 
IV. number of issues requiring monitoring input 
V. the stage and pace of development 

VI. whether the operator carries ISO 14001 (recognised best practice) 
VII. breaches of planning control that are or have been observed 
VIII. complaints received for the site. 

 
10. There is an opportunity for operators to enter discussions on how the Council 

has reached its decision for the number of visits scheduled per year. Having set 
a target for the number of visits per annum, officers keep the frequency of 

Page 88



PN7 
 

actual visits under review and adjust the frequency particularly taking account 
of IV, VII and VIII above. 

 
Enforcement  
 
11. Annex 2 to this report sets out alleged breaches of planning control and the 

progress toward remedying those breaches of substance. 
 

12. All operators are made aware of an allegation of a breach in planning control 
that has been made against them. 

 

13. Annex 2 includes all cases which are currently being investigated. When a case 
is closed it will appear on the progress report as ‘Case Closed’ with a summary 
of the outcome. 

 

14. A glossary of terms used is attached at Annex 3. The Monitoring and 
Enforcement team can be contacted for further information in respect of any of 
these cases if necessary. 

Monitoring and Enforcement Service 

 
15. The routine monitoring programme continues to pay dividends by increasing 

compliance with planning conditions, and in identifying and rectifying matters 
where conditions are not being complied with on all mineral and waste planning 
permissions.  

 
16. The service is generally well received by householders, liaison committees, 

parish and town councils with access to compliance reports providing a basis 
for discussions with operators on the progress on sites in their locality. It seeks 
to provide a timely response to local people’s concerns and serves to pre-empt 
issues which are likely to affect the amenities of an area.  

 
17. Officers in the team also provide key support in ensuring that details pursuant 

to permissions are submitted where these are required by planning conditions 
before a development starts. They often co-ordinate action between 
Development Management planners, Highways, Ecology and other County 
services and the operator. The aim is to ensure pre-commencement works are 
completed in a timely manner and before the main development is started.  

 
 
SUE HALLIWELL 
Director for Planning & Place 
 
 
November 2019 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 1 
Minerals & Waste Compliance Monitoring Sites in Cherwell District. 
 
Contact Officer: Vit Ondruch, Monitoring and Enforcement Officer 
Tel: 07785 453256 
 

Page 1 of 3 

Address  Sites 

Type - 
Mineral 

or 
Waste.  

Status Charge 
Target Visits for 
year 01/04/19 to 

31/03/20. 

Visits completed for 
the period 01/04/19 

to 31/10/19. 

Alkerton CA & Landfill, 
Alkerton, Nr. Banbury, 
Oxon. 

Alkerton Landfill  W Aftercare Full 
1 1 Alkerton CA W Active Nil 

Barford Road Farm, 
Barford Road, South 
Newington, Banbury 
OX15 4JJ 

 W Active Nil  

1 0 

Hornton Grounds, 
Stratford Road, Hornton, 
Banbury, OX15 6AH. 

Alkerton Quarry M Active Full 

3 1 
Hornton Grounds 
Quarry. 

M Active for 
stone 

processing  

  

Wroxton M Active Full 

Ardley Quarry, Ardley, 
Bicester, Oxon, OX27 
7PH. 

Ardley Landfill  W Active  Full 

3 1 Ardley EfW W Active Nil 

Ardley Quarry M Active Full 

P
age 91



ANNEX 1 
Minerals & Waste Compliance Monitoring Sites in Cherwell District. 
 
Contact Officer: Vit Ondruch, Monitoring and Enforcement Officer 
Tel: 07785 453256 
 

Page 2 of 3 

       

Address  Sites 

Type - 
Mineral 

or 
Waste.  

Status Charge 
Target Visits for 
year 01/04/19 to 

31/03/20. 

Visits completed for 
the period 01/04/19 

to 31/10/20. 

Ardley Composting Site, 
Ashgrove Farm, Upper 
Heyford Road, Ardley, 
OX27 7PJ. 

In-vessel 
Composting 

W Active   Nil 

1 0 

Belle Isle Farm, Sibford 
Road, Hook Norton 

 W Active  Nil  
1 1 

Dewar's Farm, Ardley 
Road, Middleton Stoney. 

  M   Active  Full 
3 1 

Horsehay Quarry, Middle 
Barton Road, Duns Tew. 

 M Active Full 
3 2 

Ferris Hill Farm, Sibford 
Road, Hook Norton, 
Banbury, OX15 5JY. 

  W Active Nil 
4 1 

Finmere Quarry, Banbury 
Road, Finmere, 
Oxfordshire, MK18 4AJ. 

Finmere (Landfill) W Active Full 

4 2 
Widmore W Aftercare Nil 

MRF W Dormant Nil 

Sand & Gravel M Not 
Implemented 

Full 

Greenhill Farm Quarry, 
Bletchingdon. 

  W Aftercare Full 
1 0 

P
age 92



ANNEX 1 
Minerals & Waste Compliance Monitoring Sites in Cherwell District. 
 
Contact Officer: Vit Ondruch, Monitoring and Enforcement Officer 
Tel: 07785 453256 
 

Page 3 of 3 

 

Address  Sites 

Type - 
Mineral 

or 
Waste.  

Status Charge 
Target Visits for 
year 01/04/19 to 

31/03/20. 

Visits completed for 
the period 01/04/19 

to 31/10/20. 

Heneff Way - Batching, 
Heneff Way, Banbury. 

  M Active Nil 
1 1 

Heneff Way - Tarmac, 
Heneff Way, Banbury. 

  M Active Nil 
1 1 

L.C. Hughes Scrap Yard, 
London Road, Bicester. 

  W Active Nil 
1 1 

Manor Farm - Biomass 
Gen, Twyford, Banbury. 

  W Active Nil 
1 1 

Spitle Farm WTS, Thorpe 
Road, Overthorpe 
Industrial Estate, Banbury 

 W Active  Nil 
2 1 

Shipton on Cherwell 
Quarry, Shipton on 
Cherwell, Oxfordshire. 

  W Active Full 
4 2 

Smiths of Bloxham - 
WTS. Milton Road, 
Bloxham, Banbury. 

  W Active Nil 
2 0 

Stratton Audley, Elm 
Farm Quarry, Stratton 
Audley. 

Landfill W Dormant Low 
3 0 

 

P
age 93



T
his page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 1 
Minerals & Waste Compliance Monitoring Sites in South Oxfordshire District. 
 
Contact Officer: Vit Ondruch, Monitoring and Enforcement Officer 
Tel: 07785 453256 
 

Page 1 of 2 

Address  Sites 

Type - 
Mineral 

or 
Waste.  

Status Charge 
Target Visits for 
year 01/04/19 to 

31/03/20. 

Visits completed for 
the period 01/04/19 

to 31/10/19. 

Ambrose Quarry, 
Ewelme, Oxon. 

  M Dormant Low 
1 1 

Battle Farm, Crowmarsh, 
Oxon, OX10 6SL. 

  W Active Nil 
1 0 

Caversham, Sonning Eye, 
Reading. 

Caversham Main M Active Full 

3 1 Caversham Triangle M In restoration Full 

Caversham 
Extension  

M Active Full 

Chinnor Quarry.   M Active Full 1 1 

Culham UKAEA  W Active Nil 0 0 

Ewelme Landfill. Goulds 
Grove, Ewelme, 
Wallingford, Oxon. 

Ewelme I 
(Buildings) 

W Active Nil 

3 1 Ewelme I WTS W Active Nil 

Ewelme II MRF W Active Nil 

Ewelme II Landfill W Active Full 

Eyres Lane Waste 
Transfer Site, Ewelme.  

  W Active Nil 
2 1 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 95



ANNEX 1 
Minerals & Waste Compliance Monitoring Sites in South Oxfordshire District. 
 
Contact Officer: Vit Ondruch, Monitoring and Enforcement Officer 
Tel: 07785 453256 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Address  Sites 

Type - 
Mineral 

or 
Waste.  

Status Charge 
Target Visits for 
year 01/04/19 to 

31/03/20. 

Visits completed for 
the period 01/04/19 

to 31/10/20. 

Greenwoods of 
Garsington, Scrap Yard, 
Pettiwell, Garsington, 
Oxford. 

  W Active Nil 

2 0 

Main’s Motors Ltd, 
Woodside, Old Henley 
Road, Ewelme, Oxon 

 W Active Nil 
1 0 

Hundridge Farm, Waste 
Transfer, Hundridge 
Farm, Ipsden, Oxon 

  W Active Nil 
1 0 

Menlo Industrial Park - 
Scrap Yard, Roycote 
Lane, Thame, 
Oxfordshire, OX9 2JB. 

  W Active Nil 

1 0 

Moorend Lane, Thame  M & W Active Full 3 1 

Oakley Wood, Old 
Icknield Way, Crowmarsh  

 W Aftercare Nil 
1 0 

Playhatch Quarry - WTS, 
Dunsden Green Lane, 
Playhatch, Caversham, 
Reading. 

  W Active Nil 

1 1 

Woodeaton Quarry, 
Woodeaton, OXON. 

  M Active  Full 
3 2 

 

P
age 96



ANNEX 1 
Minerals & Waste Compliance Monitoring Sites in Vale of the White Horse District. 
 
Contact Officer: Vit Ondruch, Monitoring and Enforcement Officer 
Tel: 07785 453256 
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Address  Sites 

Type - 
Mineral 

or 
Waste.  

Status Charge 
Target Visits for 
year 01/04/19 to 

31/03/20. 

Visits completed for 
the period 01/04/19 

to 31/10/20. 

Aasvogel, Waste Transfer 
Station, Grove Business 
Park, Grove. 

  W Active  Nil 
1 0 

Bowling Green Farm, 
Stanford Road, 
Faringdon, Oxon. 

 M Active Full 
3 2 

Childrey Quarry, Childrey, 
Wantage, Oxon. 

  W Active Full 
1 1 

Prospect Farm, Chilton, 
Didcot, Oxfordshire, 
OX11 0ST. 

 W Active Full 
2 1 

Drayton CA Site, Drayton, 
Oxon. 

  W Active Nil 
1 0 

Composting Facility, 
Church Lane, Coleshill, 
Swindon, SN6 7PR. 

  W Active Nil 
1 0 

Farringdon Quarry, 
Fernham Road, Little 
Coxwell, Oxfordshire. 

 M Active  Full 
2 2 

 

P
age 97



ANNEX 1 
Minerals & Waste Compliance Monitoring Sites in Vale of the White Horse District. 
 
Contact Officer: Vit Ondruch, Monitoring and Enforcement Officer 
Tel: 07785 453256 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 

 

 

Address  Sites 

Type - 
Mineral 

or 
Waste.  

Status Charge 
Target Visits for 
year 01/04/19 to 

31/03/20. 

Visits completed for 
the period 01/04/19 

to 31/10/20. 

Glebe Farm Composting, 
Glebe Farm, Hinton 
Waldrist, Oxfordshire. 

  W Active Nil 
1 2 

Haynes of Challow, East 
Challow, Wantage, Oxon, 
OX12 9TB. 

  W Active Nil 
1 0 

Hatford Quarry, Sandy 
Lane, Hatford, Oxon, SN7 
8JH. 

  M Active Full 
3 2 

Hill Farm - Woodchipping, 
Nr Didcot, Oxfordshire. 

  W Active Nil 
2 1 

Quelchs Orchard, Scrap 
Yard, Charlton, Wantage. 

  W Active Nil 
1 0 

Redbridge CA, Old 
Abingdon Road, Oxford. 

  W Active Nil 
1 0 

Radley Sand and Gravel 
Plant, Thrupp Lane, 
Radley. 

Curtis Yard & 
Tuckwell’s Plant 

M & W Dormant  Nil 
1 0 

P
age 98



ANNEX 1 
Minerals & Waste Compliance Monitoring Sites in Vale of the White Horse District. 
 
Contact Officer: Vit Ondruch, Monitoring and Enforcement Officer 
Tel: 07785 453256 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 

Address  Sites 

Type - 
Mineral 

or 
Waste.  

Status Charge 
Target Visits for 
year 01/04/19 to 

31/03/20. 

Visits completed for 
the period 01/04/19 

to 31/10/20. 

Harwell, UKAE, Harwell, 
Didcot, OX11 ORA. 

    

0 0 

Business Park   Active Nil  

Catapult Pit   Active Nil  

Southern Storage   Active Nil  

Waste Management 
Complex (B462) 

 W Active Nil  

Western Storage   Active Nil  

Radley Ash Disposal 
Scheme 

Lake E W Not 
Implemented  

Nil 

1 1 Phase I W Aftercare Full 

Phase II W Aftercare Full 

ROMP area M ROMP Full 

Sandhill Quarry, Sands 
Hill, Faringdon, Oxon, 
SN7 7PQ. 

  M Dormant Low 
1 0 

Shellingford Quarry, 
Shellingford Crossroads, 
Stanford In The Vale, 
Faringdon, Oxon, SN7 
8HE. 

  W Active Full 

3 2 

P
age 99



ANNEX 1 
Minerals & Waste Compliance Monitoring Sites in Vale of the White Horse District. 
 
Contact Officer: Vit Ondruch, Monitoring and Enforcement Officer 
Tel: 07785 453256 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 

Address  Sites 

Type - 
Mineral 

or 
Waste.  

Status Charge 
Target Visits for 
year 01/04/19 to 

31/03/20. 

Visits completed for 
the period 01/04/19 

to 31/10/20. 

Stanford in the Vale 
Waste Disposal and Civic 
Amenity Site 

 W Active Nil 
1 0 

Stone Pitt Barn, Kingston 
Road, Frilford, Abingdon, 
OX13 5HB 

 W Active  Nil  
1 0 

Sutton Courtenay 
(Hanson), Appleford 
Sidings, Abingdon, 
Oxfordshire, OX14 4PW. 

Batching Plant W Active Nil 

4 2 
Bridge Farm W Active Full 

Rail Head W Active Nil 

Tarmac plant W Active Nil 

Sutton Courtenay (FCC), 
Appleford Sidings, 
Abingdon, Oxfordshire, 
OX14 4PW. 

Composting W Active Nil 

4 2 
Landfill W Active Full 

Sutton Wick Landfill, 
Bassett Lane, Oday Hill, 
Abingdon.   

W Aftercare Full 
1 0 

Sutton Wick Sand and 
Gravel, Peep-O-Day 
Lane, Abingdon, Oxon. 

Allen Land M Restoration Full 

3 1 Sutton Wick Plant M Active Nil 

CAMAS M Active Full 

P
age 100



ANNEX 1 
Minerals & Waste Compliance Monitoring Sites in Vale of the White Horse District. 
 
Contact Officer: Vit Ondruch, Monitoring and Enforcement Officer 
Tel: 07785 453256 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 

Address  Sites 

Type - 
Mineral 

or 
Waste.  

Status Charge 
Target Visits for 
year 01/04/19 to 

31/03/20. 

Visits completed for 
the period 01/04/19 

to 31/10/20. 

Swannybrook Farm, 
Kingston Bagpuize  

 W Active  Nil 
1 0 

Tubney Woods Sand 
Quarry and Landfill Site, 
Besselsleigh, 
Oxfordshire. 

  M Restoration Full 

1 0 

Upwood Park Sand 
Quarry and Landfill Site, 
Besselsleigh, 
Oxfordshire. 

  M Active Full 

3 1 

Whitecross Metals, 
Whitecross, Abingdon, 
Oxon. 

  W Active Nil 
1 0 

Wicklesham Quarry, 
Faringdon, Oxfordshire. 

  M Aftercare Full 
2 1 

 

P
age 101



T
his page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 1 
Minerals & Waste Compliance Monitoring Sites in West Oxfordshire District. 
 
Contact Officer: Vit Ondruch, Monitoring and Enforcement Officer 
Tel: 07785 453256 
 

Page 1 of 5 

Address  Sites 

Type - 
Mineral 

or 
Waste.  

Status Charge 
Target Visits for 
year 01/04/19 to 

31/03/20. 

Visits completed for 
the period 01/04/19 

to 31/10/20. 

B & E Skips, 115 Brize 
Norton Road, Minster 
Lovell, Oxon, OX29 0SQ. 

Minster Lovell W Active Nil 
2 1 

Burford Quarry, Burford 
Road, Brize Norton, 
Oxfordshire. 

Quarrying M Active Full 
3 2 Manufacturing  

Castle Barn Quarry, 
Sarsden 

  M Active Full 
3 2 

City Farm, Eynsham. City Farm I W Aftercare Full 

1 0 New Wintle Farm W Active Nil 

City Farm II W Aftercare Nil 

Controlled Reclamation, 
Dix Pit, Stanton Harcourt, 
Oxon. 

  W Active   Full 
2 1 

Sheehan Recycled 
Aggregates, Dix Pit, 
Stanton Harcourt, Oxon. 

Wash Plant W Active Nil 
2 1 

Cornbury Park, 
(Quarrying) Charlbury, 
Oxon. 

  M Active Full 
1 0 

P
age 103



ANNEX 1 
Minerals & Waste Compliance Monitoring Sites in West Oxfordshire District. 
 
Contact Officer: Vit Ondruch, Monitoring and Enforcement Officer 
Tel: 07785 453256 
 

Page 2 of 5 

 

Address  Sites 

Type - 
Mineral 

or 
Waste.  

Status Charge 
Target Visits for 
year 01/04/19 to 

31/03/20. 

Visits completed for 
the period 01/04/19 

to 31/10/20. 

Crawley Scrap Yard   W Active Nil 1 0 

Deans Pit CA Site, 
Chadlington. 

  W Closed  Nil 
1 1 

Dix Pit, Stanton Harcourt, 
Oxon.  

Conblock W Dormant Nil 

4 2 

Dix Pit CA W Active Nil 

Dix Pit Landfill Site W Active Full 

North Shore M Complete Full 

Premix - Hanson M  Nil 

Duns Tew Quarry  M Active  Full 
3 1 

Enstone Airfield Waste 
Transfer. Unit 1, Enstone 
Airfield, Enstone, Oxon. 

 Waste Transfer 
(Unit 1)  

W Dormant Nil 

2 1 
Sound Attenuation 
Bunds  

W Active Full 

Ethos Waste Transfer 
Lakeside Industrial 
Estate, Standlake, Oxon 

  W Dormant Nil 
3 0 

P
age 104



ANNEX 1 
Minerals & Waste Compliance Monitoring Sites in West Oxfordshire District. 
 
Contact Officer: Vit Ondruch, Monitoring and Enforcement Officer 
Tel: 07785 453256 
 

Page 3 of 5 

 

Address  Sites 

Type - 
Mineral 

or 
Waste.  

Status Charge 
Target Visits for 
year 01/04/19 to 

31/03/20. 

Visits completed for 
the period 01/04/19 

to 31/10/20. 

Fraser Evans & Sons, 
Worsham Quarry, Minster 
Lovell, Oxon. 

 Tyre Recycling W Active Nil 
1 0 

Landfill W Aftercare Full 

Gill Mill, Tar Farm, Gill 
Mill Complex, 
Ducklington, Oxfordshire. 

Rushey Common M Aftercare Full 
2 1 Gill Mill Quarry M Active Full 

Great Tew Quarry, 
Butchers Hill, Great Tew, 
Oxon. 

  M Active Full 
3 1 

Hardwick Batching Plant, 
Adj. B4449, Hardwick, 
Oxon. 

CEMEX M Active Nil 
1 1 

Hardwick Recycling, Adj. 
B4449, Hardwick, Oxon. 

Fergal Yard W Active Nil 
1 1 

Hickman Bros 
Landscapes, Burford 

 W Active Nil 
1 0 

Alder & Allen,  Lakeside 
Industrial Estate, 
Standlake 

  W Active Nil 
1 0 

P
age 105



ANNEX 1 
Minerals & Waste Compliance Monitoring Sites in West Oxfordshire District. 
 
Contact Officer: Vit Ondruch, Monitoring and Enforcement Officer 
Tel: 07785 453256 
 

Page 4 of 5 

 

Address  Sites 

Type - 
Mineral 

or 
Waste.  

Status Charge 
Target Visits for 
year 01/04/19 to 

31/03/20. 

Visits completed for 
the period 01/04/19 

to 31/10/20. 

Manor Farm - Waste 
Transfer, Kelmscott, GL7 
3HJ. 

  W Active Nil 

1 1 

Ubico, Downs Road  
WTS, Witney, Oxon. 

  W Active Nil 
1 0 

Mick's Skips (Hackett's 
Yard), Lakeside Industrial 
Estate, Standlake, Oxon. 

  W Active Nil 
1 0 

Sandfields Farm, Over 
Norton, Oxfordshire.  

  W Active Nil 
2 1 

Rollright Quarry, Chipping 
Norton. 

Phase 1 M Active Full 
2 0 

Phase 2 M Active Full 

Showell Farm, Chipping 
Norton, Oxon OX7 5TH. 

  W Active Nil 
1 1 

Slape Hill Quarry, 
Glympton. 

  W Active Nil 
2 2 

Old Railway Halt, Grt 
Rollright 

 W Active Nil 
1 1 

 

 

P
age 106



ANNEX 1 
Minerals & Waste Compliance Monitoring Sites in West Oxfordshire District. 
 
Contact Officer: Vit Ondruch, Monitoring and Enforcement Officer 
Tel: 07785 453256 
 

Page 5 of 5 

Address  Sites 

Type - 
Mineral 

or 
Waste.  

Status Charge 
Target Visits for 
year 01/04/19 to 

31/03/20. 

Visits completed for 
the period 01/04/19 

to 31/10/20. 

Hardwick IDO   M ROMP Low 0 0 

Steve Claridge Motor 
Salvage, Carterton 

 W Active  Nil 
1 0 

Sturt Farm, Units 2A, 4 
Sturt Farm Ind, Burford. 

  W Active Nil 
1 0 

Watkins Farm, Linch Hill, 
Stanton Harcourt, OXON. 
OX29 5BJ. 

ROMP area M Aftercare Full 

3 1 Stonehenge Farm M Dormant  Full 

Ireland Land M Dormant Full 

Whitehill Quarry, Adj. 
A40, Burford, OXON. 

  M Active Low 
1 0 

Whitehill Quarry, Tackley, 
OXON. 

  M Dormant Low 
1 0 

Worton Rectory Farm, 
Cassington, OXON. OX29 
4SU. 

Cassington Quarry M Active Full 

4 3 Worton Composting W Active Nil 

M&M WTS W Active Nil 

 

P
age 107



T
his page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 2 

Progress of Enforcement Cases 
 
Contact Officer: Vit Ondruch, Monitoring and Enforcement Officer 
Mobile Tel: 07785 453256 
 

Location Alleged Breach of Planning Control Progress 

South Oxfordshire District Council 

Land north of Lilac 
House, White Hall 
Lane 

Unauthorised deposit of waste Deposit of 1 load of waste soils in woodland. PCN served. 
Enforcement action not expedient. Case closed. 

Ambrose Quarry Breach of Conditions - Mud on the road Filming taking place at Ambrose Quarry permitted by the 
District Council. Road sweeper mobilised by the operator 
and regularly used in the vicinity of the site access. No 
further complaints. Case closed. 

Mill Court, Reading 
Road, Cholsey 

Unauthorised deposit of waste Report of lorries depositing rubble and soil to raise the height 
of the field. No breach of planning control identified. Case 
closed. 

Caversham Quarry Breach of Condition – excessive noise A complaint about excessive noise from the sand& gravel 
processing plant. Maintenance of the processing plant 
carried out and shoots realigned. Fresh noise level 
monitoring survey carried out by the operator confirming 
compliance with the permitted noise level. Case closed. 

New Barn Farm 
Quarry, Wallingford 

Breach of Condition – excessive noise and 
dust pollution 

Concern regarding dust management raised as residents 
observed clouds of brown rising dust from the site. Dust 
emissions were higher during temporary operations - 
stripping of soil. Discussed at the public liaison meeting. 
Case closed. 
 

Chinnor Quarry Breach of Condition – aftercare  A complaint about an area of scrub established on the 
Chinnor Quarry, which is not part of the agreed landscaping. 

P
age 109



ANNEX 2 

Aftercare meeting organised with the site operator and 
scrubs agreed to be removed. Case closed. 

Great Gardens, Land 
to the rear of Chiltern 
Park Aerodrome 

Unauthorised waste operations A large amount of green waste stockpiled on agricultural 
land by a gardening company. Site operator agreed to stop 
waste operations and remove all green waste and provide 
waste transfer notes as evidence that waste material has 
been properly disposed of. Maintain a watching brief. 

Land adj. Sewage 
Works, Clifton 
Hampton 

Unauthorised deposit of waste A large amount of waste soils; construction and demolition 
waste and wood deposited on hardstanding adjacent to the 
Culham Science Park. PCN served. Enforcement 
proceedings continuing. 

Former MOD 
Warehouse, Pyrton 
Lane, Watlington 

Unauthorised deposit of waste An amount of waste wood and carpet has been brought to 
the site, stored and processed (chipped) without planning 
permission. A PCN has been served. The waste activity 
ceased. Enforcement proceedings held in abeyance pending 
the clearance of the land. Maintain watching brief. 

Vale of White Horse 

Roger`s Concrete, 
Sands Hill, Faringdon 

Unauthorised deposit of waste Report of import of inert waste with the intention to improve 
the site for housing. Site under restoration at the time. No 
breach identified. Case closed. 

Swannybrook Farm, 
Abingdon Road, 
Kingstone Bagpuize 

Breach of Conditions – concrete crushing, 
operating beyond site boundary, excessive 
HGV movements 

Waste operations being carried out outside of the site 
boundary of the permitted waste soils recycling site, 
unauthorised use of concrete crusher and excessive number 
of HGVs. The operator is expected to submit a planning 
application to seek to regularise the use of a crusher and 
operating outside of the current site boundary. HGV records 
requested but found compliant. High HGV movements 
possibly related to other non-waste businesses operating 
from Swanny Brook Farm and covered by planning 
permissions granted by the District Council. Complaint 
forwarded for investigation of the District Council 

P
age 110



ANNEX 2 

Enforcement Team. Maintain a watching brief. 

Wicklesham Quarry, 
Sandshill, Faringdon, 
Oxon, SN7 7PQ 

Breach of Planning Conditions – Failure to 
restore the site to plan 

A BCN was served in December 2016 which required the 
proper restoration of the quarry by 30 June 17. Soils had 
been imported and the majority of works completed, 
however, some matters were not finished to plan and 
retrospective planning application P17/V2812/CM 
(MW.088/17) was submitted to remedy the continuing 
breach and allow an extended period to 30 September 2018 
to complete the restoration of the quarry. Remedial works to 
the quarry floor levels were carried out. This did not bring the 
quarry floor levels to compliance. Ultimately, planning 
application with revised restoration scheme was approved. 
Wicklesham Quarry is now in aftercare. 

Sutton Wick Quarry, 
Oday Hill, Basset 
Lane, Abingdon, 
Oxon, OX14 4AB 

Breach of Conditions – development not to 
plan 

Mineral extraction has commenced without provision of 
necessary recharge trench which may affect hydrology. The 
operator is seeking advice and guidance on an alternative 
solution with their hydrologists. Investigations continuing. 

Bridge Farm Quarry, 
Sutton Courtenay, 
OX14 4PP 

Unauthorised development Bridge Farm extension has not been properly implemented 
as extraction has begun in Phase 7A/B, contrary to the 
planning permission P16/V2694/CM (MW.0127/16) issued 
on 1st June 2018. A planning application (MW.0049/19) has 
been submitted by the operator to regularise the points of 
non-compliance and has not yet been determined. 

Shellingford Quarry  Exceedingly loud noises during working 
hours 

Site attended by Senior Enforcement Officer with noise 
monitoring equipment. Noise level monitoring was carried 
out three times to check compliance with the permitted noise 
level. The quarry was found to be compliant. 

Draycott Moor Farm, 
Longworth Road, 
Southmoor, 
OX13 5JA 
 

Unauthorised development Report of unauthorised waste sorting site. Investigations 
continuing. 

P
age 111



ANNEX 2 

Cherwell 

Ferris Hill Farm Unauthorised picking station plant fixed to 
the land. 

Site monitoring visit established that a waste transfer picking 
station has been erected on the land but not in accordance 
with the most recent planning permission – 15/01828/CM 
(MW.0132/15). The operator has advised that this is a 
temporary arrangement whilst the ground works to 
implement the approved planning permission are completed. 
Maintain a watching brief.  

Shipton on Cherwell 
Quarry 

Breach of Conditions - operational and 
HGV noise impacting on residents 

Landfilling taking place in the closest point to the village. 
Excessive usage of a horn by HGVs. Compliance negotiated 
with the site operator. No further contact from the 
complainant. Case closed. 

Finmere Quarry Odour from the landfill recontouring works Stripping of over-tipped material. Operator monitoring 
windspeed and direction. An odour atomising unit with cherry 
additive unit deployed. Case closed. 

Land south of Barford 
Road, South 
Newington 

Unauthorised deposit of waste A large quantity of waste soils imported on land from a 
development site in Hook Norton to fill a lake on agricultural 
land. PCN Served. The landowner asserts that the import of 
material is required to provide for an area of hard surface 
(for the storage of hay and straw), which is permitted 
development under Class A of Part 6 to Schedule 2 of the 
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015. The case was reported 
to the Environment Agency for their investigation. Maintain a 
watching brief. 

Ford`s Yard, 
Menmarsh Road, 
Worminghall 

Breach of Condition Erection of a large fence and floodlighting around the 
perimeter of the site. Dominant operations carried out on site 
were not waste related and referred to the District Council for 
their investigation. Case closed. 

Shipton-on-Cherwell 
Quarry, Bunkers Hill 

Breach of routeing agreement Reports of HGVs not complying with the routeing agreement 
in place and using A4095 via Bladon. The site operator 

P
age 112



ANNEX 2 

informed us that they supply local developments with 
aggregate from both Shipton and Hatford Quarries as well as 
collect construction and demolition waste. Specific 
movements raised with the quarry operator. The local 
developments which are under construction have increased 
the number of vehicles using the prohibited roads for local 
deliveries and collections as per the terms of the routeing 
agreement. Traffic monitoring survey commissioned. 
Maintain a watching brief. 

Ardley ERF Breach of routeing agreement Report of a lorry not complying with the routeing agreement 
in place. Investigated with the site operator. Incident 
confirmed by the operator. Haulage company to prepare a 
handbook for drivers including correct routes for all sites.  
The driver put through the induction process again to ensure 
understanding. Formal yellow card issued by the site 
operator to the driver. Case closed. 

Shipton-on-Cherwell 
Quarry 

Breach of Condition Concern about non-implemented/failed planting scheme on 
a screening bund. Re-seeding agreed to be carried out by 
the operator in October 2019. Case closed. 

Stratton Audley Quarry Unauthorised deposit of waste and on-
going breach of planning conditions – 
failure to restore 

The site was required to be restored by 31st December 2008. 
OCC has ten years from that date in which to bring 
enforcement proceedings for on-going breach of planning 
control as reported to Planning & Regulation Committee on 
29th October 2018. Enforcement Notice was served. 
Planning application MW.0120/18 was submitted by the 
landowner seeking to allow extension of time for the 
completion of restoration. Negotiations with the current land 
owner are ongoing. 

P
age 113



ANNEX 2 

Finmere Landfill & 
Quarry, Finmere, 
OXON 

Unauthorised deposit of waste & Breach of 
Conditions 

17/02083/CM (Sand Gravel and Clay) – Phase 2 has been 
backfilled with a higher quantity of overburden and quarry 
waste (largely derived from the preparation of landfill cell 10 
than the approved 84,510m3, required to restore the phase 
to agriculture. This has resulted in an extensive and 
substantial stockpile, above the whole phase, without 
permission no. 17/01189/CM which relate to the completion 
of capping in cells 3,6 and 9 and the further restoration of 
cells 1,2,3,6 and 9 and the deposit of a topsoil mound not 
used as part of the restoration. Planning application 
MW.0041/19 seeking to regularise the temporary retention of 
the overburden mound was submitted to this authority for 
consideration. 

Shipton-on-Cherwell 
Quarry 

Breach of Condition Complaints received from residents of Shipton and Thrupp 
about excessive noise from Shipton Quarry. Investigations 
continuing. 

West Oxfordshire 

Old Quarry, Land off 
Main Road Long 
Hanborough 

Unauthorised deposit of waste Historically quarried land with some historical fly-tipping. 
No material change of use to the land. Case closed. 

Ethos (William Wyatt`s 
Yard), Standlake 
Industrial Park 

Unauthorised waste operations Stockpiling and removal of previous deposit of unauthorised 
waste. PCN served. Immune from enforcement action. 
Operator to submit a planning application to the district 
council. Maintain a watching brief. 
 

Land West of Fish Hill 
Farm, Drakes Lane 

Unauthorised disposal of waste A small uncovered pit filled with significant amount of waste 
bottles and cans with an adjacent larger area of spoil. PCN 
served. Landowner confirmed that stripping back of topsoil 
and excavation to improve the drainage of land is carried out 
and no import of waste took place. Fly-tipping of waste 
bottles and cans removed with evidence of proper disposal. 

P
age 114



ANNEX 2 

Maintain a watching brief. 

D&M Plant, Dix Pit Unauthorised waste operations Import, screening & crushing of construction and demolition 
waste. Operations now regularised by planning permission 
MW.0059/19. Case closed. 

Land at Field Barn, 
Wootton 

Unauthorised mineral extraction Extraction of stone for agricultural purposes within the 
agricultural landholding. No evidence of mineral export 
obtained or observed. Development permitted by GPDO 
2015. Case closed. 

Con Rec, Dix Pit, 
Stanton Harcourt 

Breach of Conditions - Extending Height of 
Landfill 

Breach of Conditions – non-compliance with Condition 1 (to 
complete in accordance with plans and particulars), 
Condition 2 (to complete restoration to contours by 18th April 
2018), Condition 3 (landscape planting) and Condition 4 
(sowing of grass seed) of planning permission reference 
16/04159/CM (MW.0141/16) The site remains over-tipped 
and unrestored. Planning Enforcement Notice served to 
formally require works to be completed to plan. Planning 
Enforcement Notice was appealed by the operator. 
Subsequently the Enforcement Notice was quashed by the 
Planning Inspectorate. A planning application was submitted 
to regularise the landform. 

Manor Farm, High 
Street, Great Rollright 

Unauthorised deposit of inert waste A farm quarry has been substantively filled with inert waste 
without planning permission or environmental permit. PCN 
served. 

New Wintles Farm, 
Eynsham, Witney, 
OX29 4EG 

Breach of Conditions – Mud on the road 17/00055/CM – Condition 1 & 5. Requires that a wheel wash 
be installed, and that mud not be tracked onto the highway. 
Spot checks confirmed the breach of planning control. The 
operator has commissioned necessary works and deployed 
road sweeper. Operator ceased trading. Maintain a watching 
brief. 

 

P
age 115



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Planning Enforcement – Glossary of Terms  

 
Awaiting DP - Details pursuant to a planning condition must 

be approved by OCC prior to commencement 
of development.  

 
BCN - Breach of Condition Notice – A summary 

procedure for the enforcement of planning 
conditions. Where there has been a failure to 
comply with a condition attached to a current 
planning permission the Local Planning 
Authority may serve such a notice. 

 
CDC - Cherwell District Council 
 
CLEUD - Certificate of lawful use / development. A 

procedure to allow a person to ascertain 
whether; (a) the existing use of land or 
buildings is lawful; (b)  any operations carried 
out in, on, over or under land are lawful; or (c) 
any other matter constituting a failure to comply 
with a condition of a planning permission is 
lawful. 

 
COU - Change of Use 
 
EA - Environment Agency 
 
EN - Enforcement Notice 
 
Expediency - A judgment of the merits of an activity against 

planning policy. 
 
LBA - Letter before action - a formal letter which sets 

out the alleged breach in planning control and 
suggested remedy. 

 
OCC - Oxfordshire County Council 
 
PCN - Planning Contravention Notice – A formal 

notice requiring a recipient to provide 
information about development on land so far 
as they are able. 

 
Pd - permitted development 
 
Pp - planning permission 
 
SODC - South Oxfordshire District Council 
 
VoWH - Vale of White Horse District Council 
 
WODC - West Oxfordshire District Council 

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Update to Local List of Information Requirements for Validation of Planning and Related Applications
	PN_DEC0919R03 - Validation Requirements Annex

	7 Progress Report on Minerals and waste Site Monitoring and Enforcement
	PN_DEC0919R05 - Monitoring & Enforcement Annex 1 Cherwell
	PN_DEC0919R06 - Monitoring & Enforcement Annex 1 South
	PN_DEC0919R07 - Monitoring & Enforcement Annex 1 Vale
	PN_DEC0919R08 - Monitoring & Enforcement Annex 1 West
	PN_DEC0919R09 - Monitoring & Enforcement Annex 2
	PN_DEC0919R10 - Glossary of Terms


